
Level 10, Terrace Tower

80 William Street

East Sydney NSW 2011   

Telephone: (02) 9308 1800
Email : orgs@fwc.gov.au

Internet : www.fwc.gov.au

31 March 2017

Ms Viv Allanson
President          
Aged & Community Services NSW & ACT
(by email)

Dear Ms Allanson,

Annual Return of Information for   [AR2017/86]

I acknowledge receipt on 31 March 2017 of your Declaration providing information in accordance 
with subsection 233(1) of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act).

The documents lodged cover the required information for the Annual Return of Information of Aged 
& Community Services NSW & ACT.

The documents have been filed and can be viewed on the Fair Work Commission website through 
the List of Registered Organisations - http://www.fwc.gov.au/registered-organisations/find-
registered-organisations.

Notifications of Change

Any changes to these records must be notified to the Commission within 35 days of the change.  A 
template Notification of Change Declaration is available on the fact-sheets page of our website.    
Aged & Community Services NSW & ACT is encouraged to use this template if any changes occur.

Yours sincerely

Carolyn Moloney

Regulatory Compliance Branch
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AGED & COMMUNITY SERVICES NSW & ACT 

ANNUAL REPORT OF INFORMATION FOR 2017 [AR2017/86] 

1. Declaration by the President of the ACS Board of Directors, Ms VN All anson 

• Annex A List of offices as at 31 December 2016 
• Annex B List of office holders as at 31 December 2016 

• Annex C Change of office holders 

• Annex D Cont. Change of office holders 

2. Statement- Information about ACS. 

3. Declaration of Results for Contested Offices from AEC. 

4. A copy of the 2016/17 Annual Report & Annual Financial Report. 

Viv Allanson 
PRESIDENT 

31 March 2017 

Respect 
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DECLARATION 
[AR2017/86] 

I, Viv Allanson, Chief Executive Officer of Maroba, 58 Edith Street, WARATAH NSW 
2298 declare that the following is true and accurate: 

1. I am the President of the Aged & Community Services NSW & ACT which is an 
organisation registered under the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) as a company 
limited by guarantee. 

2. To the best of my knowledge and belief the list annexed hereto and marked 'A' 
is a true and correct list of the offices of the Aged & Community Services NSW & 
ACT as required in s. 233 (1)(a) and (b) of the Fair Work (Registered 
Organisations) Act 2009. 

3. To the best of my knowledge and belief the list annexed hereto and marked 'B' 
'C' & 'D' is a true and correct list of the office holders of the Aged & Community 
Services NSW & ACT as required in s. 233 (1)(a) and (b) of the Fair Work 
(Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 

4. To the best of my knowledge and belief the register of members of the Aged & 
Community Services NSW & ACT has within the calendar year and up until 31 
December 2016 kept and maintained as required in ss.230(1)(a) and (2) [s. 233 
(1)(a)] of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 

5. The Office of the Aged & Community Services NSW & ACT is located at Level 6, 
Suite 604 5 Rider Boulevard, RHODES NSW 2138. The postal address is PO 
Box 3124 RHODES NSW 2138. 

V iv Allanson 
PRESIDENT 

\ \~t~Jf'! "• 
Y~~-. 

1.-

Declared : 31 March 2017 



List of offices 

Annex A 
[AR2017/86] 

Aged & Community Services NSW & ACT (ACS) 
Level 6, Suite 604 5 Rider Boulevard 
RHODES NSW 2138 

As required under s.230(1 )(b) ACS is the only office operating. 

There are no other branches of ACS or branches that commenced or ceased operation in 
the last 12 months. 

Viv Allanson 
PRESIDENT 

Declared: 31 March 2017 



Annex B 
[AR2017/86] 

List of Office Holders of the Aged & Community Services NSW & ACT as at 31 December 
2016 as per s.230(1){c). 

OFFICE 

Ms Viv Allanson 

President 

Mr Paul Sadler 

Director 

Mrs Alexandra Karen Zammit 

V ice President 

Mr Frank Price 

Director 

Gavin Pretorius 

Director 

Paul McMahon 

Admin & Finance Business Area 

' 

OFFrCE HOLDER 

Chief Executive Officer 

Maroba 

Presbyterian Aged Care NSW & ACT 

PO Box 2196 

STRAWBERRY HILLS NSW 2012 

Chief Executive Officer 

Thomas Holt 

1-25 Acacia Road 

KIRRAWEE NSW 2232 

Chief Executive Officer 

Royal Freemasons' Benevolent Institution 

Citigroup Centre, 2 Park Street, Level 12 
Sydney NSW 2000 

Chief Executive Officer 

Anglican Community Services 

Level 2, Century Corporate Centre, 62 
Norwest Boulevard, 

: Baulkham Hills, NSW, 2153 
I 

Southern Cross Care (NSW & ACT) 



Director 

Ross Gregory Low 

Director 

Mr Mark Sewell 

Director 

David Maher 

Director 

Raad Richards 

Director 

Chris Grover 

Director 

Sue Thomson 

Director 

Jenni Allan 

Director 

Admin & Finance Business Area 

Barcom Street 

MERRYLANDS NSW 2160 

Chief Executive Offic.er 

Baptist Community Services - NSW & ACT 
(BCS) 
PO Box 655, Epping 

1710 / 28A Cambridge Street 

EPPING NSW 2121 

Chief Executive Officer 

Warrigal Care 

PO Box 435 

ALBION PARK NSW 2527 

General Manager 

Catholic HealthCare Limited 

PO Box 858 

EPPING NSW 1710 

Chief Executive Officer 

Carrington Centennial Care 

90 Werombi Road 

CAMDEN NSW 2570 

Chief Financial Officer 

Uniting 

Level 4, 222 Pitt Street 
Sydney NSW 2000 

Mclean Care Limited 

PO Box 360 

INVERELL NSW 2360 

Chief Executive Officer 

ADSSI Tuggerah 



Alexandra Davis 

Director 

Viv Allan son 
PRESIDENT 

Declared: 31 March 2017 

Admin & Finance Business Area 

3A Pioneer Avenue 
Tuggerah NSW 2259 

Chief Executive Officer 

Holy Family Services 
I 

116-132 Quakers Rd, 

Marayong NSW 2148 



Change of Office Holders 

Annex C 
[AR2017/86] 

Aged & Community Services NSW & ACT 

1. As per 2016 Elections 

Outgoing 

• Alexander Lachlan McLean Shaw (Director), Royal Freemasons' Benevolent 
Institution. 

• David Goodhew (Director), Anglicare Chesalon. 
• Robin Freeman {Director), Anglican Retirement Village. 
• Stephen Teulan Vice President), Uniting. 

Newly Elected Directors 

• At the 2016 election process (5) Directors were nominated for election and (7) 
candidates. 

• (5) Directors were elected as at September 2016. 

2. Other changes 

• Stephen Teufan is no longer Vice President, this role has been taken over by 
Alexandra Karen Zammit. 

Viv Allanson 
President 

Date: 31 March 2017 

Admin & Finance Business Area 



ANNEXURED 

• Changes to Offices and Office Holders in the Organisation. 

BRANCH DATE OF NAME OF NAME OF REASON NAME OF POSTAL OCCUPATION 

CHANGE OFFICER OUTGOING FOR NEW ADDRESS OF OF NEW 

OFFICE CHANGE OFFICE NEW OFFICE OFFICE 

HOLDER HOLDER HOLDER HOLDER 

NSW& 31/08/2016 Director Alexander Resigned Chris Royal CFO 

ACT Lachlan Grover Freemason~ ' s 

Mclean Benevolent 

Shaw ln~ttution 

Level 4, 222 Pitt 
Street 
Sydney NSW 20 
00 

NSW& 26/09/ 2016 Director David Resigned Gavin Anglican CEO 

ACT Good hew Pretorius Community 

Services 

Level2, Century 

Corporate 

Centre,62 

Norwest 

Boulevard, 

Baulkham Hills, 

. NSW, 2153 

NSW& 26/09/2016 Director i Robin i Resigned i Alexandra 1->foly Family CEO 

ACT Freeman Davis '' Services i 
i 
I 

116-132 
Quakers Rd, 
Marayong NSW 
2148 



NSW& 11/ 10/2016 

ACT 

NSW& 11/10/ 2016 
ACT 

NSW& 11/10/2016 
ACT 

Viv Allanson 
PRESIDENT 

Vice 

President 

Director 

Director 

Declared: 31 March 2017 

· Stephen I Resigned 
Teulan 

Voted by 

Board 1 

Year 

Casual 

Vacancy 

Voted by 

Board 1 

Year 

Casual 

Vacancy 

Alexandra 1 Thomas Holt CEO 

Karen I 

Zammitt 1 1-25 Acacia 

I Road 

I KIRRAWEE 
NSW 2232 

Jenni Allan ADSSI Tuggerah CEO 

3A Pioneer 
Avenue 
Tuggerah NSW 
2259 

David Catholic GM 

Maher HealthCare 

limited 

PO Box 858 

EPPING NSW 

1710 

"''S.. ..... r .O- ·IJ .._\:. , ...... ..... _.~ •• ~ .. ~.-c,,. , •.---------------------

Aged & COmmunity ScNices NSW & ACT 



1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

STATEMENT 

AGED & COMMUNITY SERVICES NSW & ACT 
INFORMATION REQUIREMENT 

[AR2017/86] 

REQUIREMENT I ACS COMPLIANCE 

Maintenance of • Declaration by Viv Allanson - Parra 4 
Register of Members 
list of Offices • Declaration by Viv Allanson -Annex A 

List of Office Holders • Declaration by Viv Allanson -Annex B 

Branches • Declaration by Viv Allanson - Annex A 
• There are no branches at the date of this 

statement and there have been no branches 
closed or opened In 2016. 

Elections Elections were held in September 201 6 

Attached 

• A declaration by the Australian Electoral 
Commission advising the results of the elections. 

Memberships • 279 NFP member organisations (including both 
Ordinary and CHSP members) 

• 9 lAS member organisations 
• There were 34 Employees as at 31 December 

2016. 

Viv Allanson 
PRESIDENT 



Declared: 31 March 2017 



Cummt St&tu" Hoard II!Rm•<s • 2C"31'7fi14 
16 V1v Allanson 
14 Paul Sadler 
13 Mal'k Sewell 
12 Frank Prn:e 

11 Vacant PoSitJOn 
10 GaVIn PrefaiUS 

• R06& ~orylow 

• DaVId Maner 
7 .AielCalldra Pauline DaVIS 

• Alexandra-Karen Zammrt 
6 Paul McMahon 

" Raad Richards 
3 Chns Grover 
2 Suelhomson 
1 Jenn1 Allan 

Notes nom 201.6 Election 
Alexander lachlan Mclean Shaw 
David Goodhew 
Robin Freeman 
•stephen Teulan 
Alexandra 1.ammit 
Jennl Allan 

David Maher 
Chris Grover 
•Ron Thompson 

MUNITY S£RVIC: 

l·•oslllon IIGM!blilr'~ lllt:me t"t'>Ctotl 
President Maroba Sep-14 
Director Presbytenan Sep-14 

Director WamgaiC8re lsep-14 
On-ector Royal Freemasoas' Benevoll'flt Institution Sep-16 

O~rector ISep-14 
OITedor ~ICOn Community ServK:e5 ISe9-18 
Dlrecior 8apUt community SeMces NSW & ACT ISe;>-16 
Director Catho~ Heath Care Qd-16 
Director Holy Family Service& ISep-16 

V1ee PreSident Thomas Holt Sep-16 
Director Southern Cross {NSW & ACT) Sep-15 
Director Camngton C8Clten111ef Sep-15 
Director lk'ullng Oct-16 
Director Mcleon Care Ltd Sep-15 
Duector ADSSI Tuggerall Oct-16 

Retired in August 2016 and Frank Price n~placed his position 

Resigned In september 2016 and Gavin Pretorius replaced his position 
Resigned in September and Alexandra Davis replaced his position 
Resigned on 11 October 20.16 
Voted on l l/10/2016 by the Board as VIce President 
Voted on ll/10/2016 by the Board as 1 year casual vacancy 
Voted on 11/10/2016 by the SoaR'! as 1 year casual vacancy 
Voted by the Board straisht after Stephen's resignation 

Resigned on 18 March 2017 

le,·mExp·a Rt'·Efecttl-d Term f-"t:'s 
3rdof4terms [Aug-17 Aug-27 
3rd of 4 tenns Aug-17 Aug-27 
3rd of 4 tl!fTilS 1Aug-17 IAuQ-27 
3rd of 4 terms Aug-18 Au!r26 
3rd of 4 terms AI.V-17 Aug-27 

3rdof4tetms Aug-18 Au§-26 

'3rd of 4 terms Aug-18 AUIJ-25 
3rd of 4 terms Aug-18 Aug-26 

3rd of 4 temls Aug-18 Aug-26 
3rd of 4 tem1s AUi;·t8 Aug-le 

3rd of 4 t0011s AU9:1S Aug-25 
3Rt of 4 tenns Aug-15 Aug-25 

3rd of 4 terms Aug· HI Aug-25 
3rd of 4 tenor. Aug-15 Aug-25 
3rcl of 4 lellTI$ Aug-15 Aug-25 



Aged & Community Services Association of NSW & ACT 
Incorporated 

Election of Directors 2016 

Declaration of Results for Contested Offices 

E2016/167 

Below are the results of the election for the following offices, conducted in accordance with the 
provisions of the Fair Worlc (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 and the rules of the 
organisation. 

Aged & Community Services of NSW & ACT Incorporated 

Total number of names on the roll of voters 
Ballot papers issued 
Replacement ballot papers issued 
Total Ballot Papers Issued 
Ballot papers I envelopes returned for scrutiny 
Less ballot papers I envelopes rejected at preliminary scrutiny 
Adjusting balance 
Total Ballot Papers Admitted to Scrutiny 
Percentage of ballot papers returned to number issued 
Ballot papers returned as unclaimed mail 
Ballot papers not returned 

Director (5) 

Candidates In itial Votes 

ZAMMIT, Alexandra 30 
PRICE • Frank 18 
PRETORIUS, Gavin 32 
MAHER, David 19 
DAVIS, Alexandra 34 
LOW, Ross Gregory 29 
LUNNEY, Lisa 9 

Total votes 171 
Formal ballot papers 171 
Informal ballot papers 1 

434 
434 

0 
434 
181 

9 
0 

172 
41 

6 
247 

Final Votes 

98 (4) 
88 (5) 
86 (1) 

22 
90 (3) 
88 (2) 

Excluded 

171 
1 

I declare Alexandra Davis, Ross Gregory Low~ Gavin Pretorius, Frank Price and Alexandra 
Zammit elected. 

Noopur Madan 
Returning Officer 
Australian Electoral Commission 

26 September 2016 

Report Printed: 26 September 2018 Page 1 of 1 

~JAEC 
Au•troiiDn Eh1etor111 Comrnl5slon 

~· 
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PRESIDENT'S REPORT 
VI\/ ALLANSOt~ 

orne of you may call me a dreamer, but I am hopb g you 
will join :ne and together we will create the services 

we wan! to provide to the frail older people we support. 

This year has been a bit of a roller coaster w.th a new Pnme 
Minister telling us it is an exci ting time to be in Austra lia 
ar.d tl':en various announcements showing that maybe this 
is not so true for our older people. The reforms keep rolling 
out, often poorly implemented despite the good intentions 
of all involved. Our organisations have struggled to provide 
continuity of service to our clients, and financial health lor 
the business. 

It l'tas been an important time to have a united voice. and 
ACS has worked tirelessly with senior bureaucrats to warn 
them of predicted problems, fix broken systems, and correct 
the impacts that have flowed down the system to impact 
on our abili ty to keep services going. We have to dream 
of the day when My Aged Care will work as it is intended, 
providing a smooth navigation and customer experience for 
our clients and for us. 

This year saw us have a victory with the NSW Government 
finally deciding to remove aged care from the Public Health 
Act. 

This would remove a huge threat hanging over the heads of 
smaller facil it ies that were facing closure as they could never 
have complied with the union push to have 24n Registered 
Nurse cover in every facil ity. As we know, registered nurses 
are an invaluable part of the care team, but for many clients 
their needs are best met by other staff such as care workers 
or allied health. This great decision by the NSW Liberal 
Party has still not made its way through Parliament. and 
will have a rocky path with many Members of Parliament 
not understanding the issues. We will dream of a sensible 
and logical world in which we have the freedom to employ 
and use our capable staff in the best way to meet the needs 
of the cl1ents. 

Unfortunately, in the same week the NSWGovernment made 
i ts welcome decision, the Commonwealth Government has 
induced nightmares for residentia: aged ca:-e providers. The 
cuts to funding for complex health care needs announced in 
the budget, will potentially reduce available funds by 11% for 
new residents after 1 January 2017. This led to a successful 
election campaign to raise public and political awareness 
about how this decision was turning their backs on the older 
and fraile:- people In Australia. With the support of various 
cross bencher politicians there will be an inquiry into the 
proposals. So while we all start work on cutting budgets 
and staffing, we will also dream of success 1n that inquiry. 

Fortunately we bnng many of our dreams into reality. We 
had a wonderful State Conference th is year with speakers 
and t he audience having fun and being present for each 
other. This year our winners in the Awards for Excellence 
were outstanding examples of people making a difference, 
despite the turbulence of our environment. For the first 
t ime organisations specialising In community services 
dominated the awards, and some disabil ity seNices were 
nominated. We dream of a world where vul nerable people 
receive the care and support they need, and our staff are 
valued as they deserve. I thank all of you l or sharing that 
dream and for working so hard to make it a reality. It has 
been hard work, but we are blessed that it is not thankless 
work. We are making a difference. In particular I would like 
to thank the Board of ACS and the staff for t heir commitment 
and passion in pursuing OlOr goals and values. 

Vlv Allanson 
ACS President 

5 



Jenni Allan \fiv Allanson Phil Armstrong 
President Director 

Years in Industry: 33 Years in Industry: 25 Years in Industry: 20 

AOSSI Maroba !resigned Oct 20151 

Chief Executive Officer Chief Executive Officer Banksia \liUages ltd 

Attendance 11! Attl!mdance at Chief Executive Officer 

Board Meetings: 3/3 Bo-ard Meetings: 5/8 Attendance at 
Board Meetings: 3/3 

Rob freeman David Goodhew Ross Low 
Director Di rector Director 

Years in Industry: 7 Years in Industry: 30 Years in Industry: 16 

Ar1glican Retirement Western Region, BaptistCare 
Villages Anglicare Diocese of Sydney Chief Executive Officer 
Chief Executive Director A:tendance at 
Attendance at Attendance at Soard Meetings: 7/8 
Board Meetings: 7/8 BGard Meetings: 5/8 

David Maher Paul :McMahon Raad Richards 
Director Di rector Director 
Years in Industry: 26 Years in Industry: 30 Years In Indust ry: 41 

Catholic Heallhcere Limited Southern Cross Care Carrington Care 

Man.::ging Director (NSW & ACTI Umitccl Chief Executive 

Attendance at Chief Executive Attendance at 
Board Mettings: 7/8 Attendance at Board Meetings: 6/8 

B1>ard Meetings: 4/5 

Paul Sadler Mark Sewell Ale;! Shaw 
Vice President Director Director 
Jun 2015/Dec 201 5 Years in Industry: 29 Years in Industry: 35 

Years in Industry: 29 Warrigat Royal Freemasons 

Presbyterian Aged Care Chief Executive Olficer Benevolent Institution 

Chief Executive Officer Attendance at Chief Executive Officer 

Attendance at Bo·ard Meetings: 6/8 Attendance at 

Board Meetings: 8/8 Board Meetings: ']/8 

Stephen Teulan R~n Thompsoil Sue Thomson 
Vice President Director Director 
Jan 2015/Jun 2016 Years in Industry: 26 Years In lndu~try: 20 

Years in Industry: 17 RSL Lif~Car~ Mclean Care Ltd 

Uniting Chief Executive Officer Chief Executive Officer 

Director Ageir,g Attendance at Attendance ot 
Attendance at Board Meetings: 6/8 Board Meetings: 4/5 

Board Meetings: 6/8 

Steve Walkerden Helen Wilson Ale:{andra 2ammi~ 
Director Director Director 

Years in Industry: 33 Years in Industry: 10 Years in Industry: 10 
[resigned Oct 2015) [resigned Dec 20151 Thomas Holt 
United Protestant Wesley Mission Chief Executive Officer 
Association of NSW General Manager Wesley Attendance at 
General Manager Aged Care Baard Meetings: 5/8 
Attendance at Attendance at 
Board Meetings: Z/3 Boord Meetings: 4/4 



MEMBERS' NUMBERS 
2012 - 2016 

2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 

.. Ordinary ~ Industry Advice Scheme • CHSP Only 

Note: Industry consolidation has been a feature for ordinary 
members 

MEMBERSHIP REVENUE 
2012 - 2016 

$2,016,453 $2.021,997 

$ 1,903,165 
$1 ,873,789 

$2,155,355 

201 1-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 
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ACS ORGANISATIONAL CHART 
2015-16 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

BOARD AUDIT & RISK COMMJn·EE 

ADVISORY COMMITTEES 
Residential 
C~Jnl!T'Ur;lty 

Hou511!tJ & Ret1remenl L1vmg 

L.~IJ:'"!ll:'lg & Dev~loprru:mt 
Procurert'ent 
Fana:'!Cl<ll l~sue~· 

Environrmmlol Sustamabrirty 

9Lti!drng 

REGIONAL COMivll"fTEES 
S~·dncy 'Nest 
Centrnl Coast 
Hunter 
Mid North Coasl 
Far Nonh Coast 
New England 
Or;ma & F::~r West 

Central West 
Ravenna 
Far South Coast 
ACT & Southern Tablelonds 

l!l<Jwnrra 



I • ~ -~ 

Chief Executive Olliter 

lllana Halliday 

·~: ... -
1 Respile Projott Officer 
1 f- • lBA 

A')ed &Community 
Ser Jicr. ; 15W l. AG 
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ACS VALUES 

10 '11 Ageci S. Corn-nur.<ty Servcn.11 k!:W & ACT 

\/IS!CJt'J & MISSIO f\J 
STATEMENTS AND 
ACS VALUES 
VISION 
Supporting the delivery of excellent 
services to older Australians, no matter 
who they are or where they are. 

MISSION 
To be a strong advocate and support for 
church, charitable and not-for-profit 
members. 



CEO'S REPORT 
I LLANA :-lALLJOAY 

he year seems to have beer. even more frenet ic than 
most, and the pace is starting to show on members 

ar:d staff. 

The reforms in the residential aged care sector are settling 
down to some extent, although the constant struggle to get 
reliable and accurate reports and support from My Aged 
Care, the Department of Health and various other agencies 
has been fatiguing. II is amazing that our most popular 
course in this year was ·understanding Your Medicare 
Statements", a reflection of the enormous amount of time 
members have had to put into analysing and correcting 
payments due to them. 

The reform of the community service space, the Home Care 
Program and the Commonwealth Home Support Program, 
has picked up pace. Next year will be as disruptive to aged 
care providers as the impact of Uber on taxis. In preparation 
for these changes the sector has never had a sharper focus 
on its costs and systems, as well as making the customer 
contact positive. 

Somewhat on the fringes of all these changes we see growth 
in the form of retirement living and an expectation that more 
older people will be seeking care and support to live in 
the community, on their own terms and with total control 
of their choices. Services are cropping up to match care 
workers with people seeking care. undercutting traditional 
workforce use and development. Exciting new partnerships 
are being created to support standalone providers and build 
on regional strengths, as providers struggle to find ways to 
be sustainable. This has to be a time for us to challenge the 
relevance of the industrial awards as the workplace is being 
deregulated around us. 

Within that turbulent environment, ACS has assisted 5 
organisations to create their Enterprise Agreements end 
sadly had to help on 15 occasions with unfair dismissal 
procedures. We helped 5 members quickly resolve issues 
of non-compliance with the legislation that could have 
seriously damaged their reputations and resulted in drawn 
out and expensive sanctions on their services. 

These provided us with learning opportunities for other 
members, and became imbedded in the content of our 
events program and learning courses. We ran a more diverse 
program of professional developmer.t this year, picking up 
on member requests and issues as they emerged. 

We have had several important successes this year. The NSW 
Minister for Health had indicated that despite our lobbying 
t:l the contrary, she had decided to require 24tl RN cover in 
every aged care facility. The lobbying activity in the space was 
successfully intensified, and the NSW Governrr.ent positior. 
has now been announced as removing aged care from the 
Public Health Act. This is a huge win and we are very thankful 

for the local campaigning dor.e by members to help deliver 
this result. Sadly in the same week we were hit with the news 
of savage cuts to ACFJ funding. An election campaign on this 
managed to get crossbencher support for an lr.quiry into the 
cuts, and now the ALP is supporting calls for the Inquiry and 
the modelling behind the cuts. Work will continue in this 
space, as clearly it ls impossible to absorb an 11% cut to 
funding and stilt provide the care we wish to deliver. 

It seems that we have had daily calls to sort out reform 
implementation issues, and while it is a pity the calls are 
needed, it is pleasing to see the resolution of the problems 
that are hounding members. 

This year we had a deficit budget, although the overall 
result was better than budget. ACS NSW & ACT has made 
a major investment in the future of ACSA and its move 
to a national model. It is time for us to strengthen our 
influence in the policy and advocacy space, and this is best 
achieved by developing a stronger and national team that 
cannot be ignored in Canberra or locally. In preparation for 
the creation of our national organisation we continued to 
improve our information technology and systems, with many 
enhanced services and improved security. A major change 
for us was to move out of the offices we have been in for 1 1 
years. The shift will provide better spaces for our training 
and networking activities, and give the staff a much healthier 
operating environment and hopefully reenergise them after 
an exhausting year. 

We very much appreciate the support of members In all our 
activities. This year we have had to put the call out for more 
engagement than ever before. However, together we have 
had some important wins. In particular, we would like to 
thank the Board for their wonderful leadership in the sector. 
They never lose sight of the diversity of our membership and 
how tough it is for the majority of members who do not have 
sophisticated systems. The aged care sector is fortunate 
to have so many passionate people who work tirelessly to 
ensure the quality of life for older Australians. 

11 



RESIDENTIAL 
ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

CHAIR: RAAD RICHARDS 
STAFF SUPPORT: COLLEEN RIVERS 

20 15/16 proved to be yet anoth~r y~ar t1 
signrt:::ant changes for R~sldent1al 

Cart> prov1ders wl!h the J,CA1 tran:sitran to ~.~., Agel.! Ct~rv, 

tl'le establ1shrrent of ttw~ Aped Care Compt...Jnts 
Cornml'lstoner, the comrr.encemem of 1ht Nat1onal Quelil) 
lnoi~.ator Progrnm, !he ~on1menc<'meol of tl1e Sever. 
Beha111our Response Teams and major cuts to funding for 
complex care amongst them. 

As Wllh so maJ'\y recent changes, these were not wtthout 
the1r chaUenges 

At state level the Parliamentary Inquiry 1nto Registered 
NursP.s 10 Aged Care and the 1mplementetmn of spnnklon 
10 res1denbal care were lTIBJOr ISSUC!I faced by res1dcnt1al 
pr:NK!ers 

Throughollt another challenging year the Commrtt~ ha:!> 
coot1nued to provide support to /...geCI & C:~nmumly SerYlces 
NSW & Acr !ACSI as we progress the imptement ... hoo 
cf the reforms and continue If.! ~dvocate :m bel•alf of our 
members both at st;.ltot and national level w1:hm the a~c:ac~ 

framr.:WOrlls of both ACS and Aged & Ctlmmur.i :Y Se!VIces 
Australra iACSAI. 

SECTOR INFLUENCE & ADVOCACY 

The Committee has been engaged and responsive to a range 
<Jfcr.nsl.!ttations and has grMtly as.~isted Wlth the aevelopmont 
of ACS puUcy pOSitions 1o Inform our rontrib;Jtlon lo these 
~onsuhatton-s l'!nd c;ubfTIISSIOn.<'- .)11 nattonaL !>tate .:md territory 
tssces includmg 

• Tl' c NSW Health 1\ged C~ re Steerlnq Commttl t!t on 
Issues rt 2411 RNs 

• The NSW P<)r\iaMentar-t lnqt.i·ry mto RN~ an Age> :I Cart 

• The Australtan Age:l C~n> Quality Agency proposed full 
Co6trecovery nQdel 

• The Departmer.l of Health consultation on Ac(;redtt'lllon 
Contestab1l1ty 

"' The Department of Health ccnsultellc.n on proposeo 
chan90:. lo thn orovtsJon of !:'~tra :>ervtces 111 restdentlil 
Cart' 

• Tile NSW Health cons:.~~tabon on a dra~ft MYance Care 
CtACti\llt t•mptale ana lr:formntiOfl Aooltlet 

• /..CSA'& paper on tmprunng access to paU1atNe care tn 

<19ed cara set'Vlce:; 

• ACSA's response to the Aged Care Sector Commtttee·s 
r~que~l for informat1on on the tmpact of Implemented 

red tape reduction measures 

• l='eedb.<!ck on changes to the Standards for ?racttce for 

Enrolled Nurses 

• A rango o! ts..uas to ass1st ACS staff 1n therr roles as 
provider repruentaltves on National Agttd Care Alliance 
INACAl nnd 0Ppl'lrtment of Health wo~•r.g grvups. 

Seeking the expert op1mon and ft;&db;,cJ; from the Commtttee 

mt:mbers on a range of d1flerent rssu,,s , the foUowiflg guests 

hiM! presented to lhe corr.rnittee '" the last year. 

• Dr Jackie HltbQrre Psychog~natric Servtc~S-M·Screen 
!PsyctJo~rr~atric SOSl 

• Bill Silvester & Llz Callaghan re O~tciSI(m As::.1st 

• Peter ~.t1crley llncl Jackie Bar.ham (Prov•aer Asststl 
proposed remote RN support 

• Ar.thony t.4aropoulos (Argus Glob01LI - pos:.1h~e brometric 

solt.1ton to 58 abu~ 

• Mane Alfotd - He.>d .of Nat1onal Severe BehaVIour 
~osponse Team/NSW OBMAS 

1 SaUy Ross - Dtrector, NSW/Ar:T Comp(aints Operations, 
Aged Car'$ Complaints Commtsstoner 

1 Lauren Todorovic, Ou~tor & Founder, Ag~ Care 
Report Carel. 



BUILDING MEMBER CAPABILITY 
As Wtth previous years, Commrttee members hove regularly 
provtcled advrce 011 c;urr.nt practice and generously snared 
both their experttse and resources to as~11st our menobers 
ACS Is utrcmety grateful to n"embers of the Comrr:Jttee to1· 
theJr ongomg support m th1s way. 

STRATEGIC ALLIANCES 

ACS !las continued to foster wtuable str.tt~IC alltances and 
to worl< collaborattwly wtth a fange of stakel1older groups 
to advocate on the behalf of ntSidtontlel ~ ProYiders ana to 
enhance member capacity in the proVISion of restdantial aged 
care tndudmg 

• Australler Aged Care Quahty Agency -Agency Lla1son 
Group 

• Aged Care Complarnts CommiSSIOner Industry uatson 
Meetrng 

• The ,1Jepartment :rl Health INSW l Aged Care Liaison 
Gn~up 

• The Department of H~alth Cuolrty ln::llr.ators Reference 
Group 

• The Nat tonal Aged Care Alban~ Quality Advisory Group 

• The NSW Older Persons Men~ I Health Working Group 

-• ARAf Ml Older Persons Carer Pak Aovtsory Cc.mm1ttH 

In conc!usaon I would IJke to express my Sincere thank.! Br1U 
ap~c~at:,on to the ACS NSW & ACT Team and m part1cu1ar 
to lllena Halliday and CoUeen Rivers for their leadershrp and 
support to the Committee and to ACS Members genaraHy 

I also thank the Membet'S of the Comrrut:ea tor their 
C()mmltment and contribution to the excellent worlc of the 
Comm1ttu 

I look forward to workrng wrth the team and Cornm1ttee 
members over the nsxt 12 montfls u v.. conllnu~ tc; 
implemtllt the reforms m 'lged eare 
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COMMUNITY 
ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

CHAIR: PAUL SADLER 120151 & JENNI ALLAN 
STAFF SUPPORT: LISA RALPHS 

As a long standtng m~m1ber of the Community Advisory 
Commtttee, J was honot,;red to be invtled lo chatr the 

Commtttee after JOtntng thP ACS Board On bthalf of the 
Committee, I would ltke to ~~tcknowtedgt the strongleadH'!Wltp 
of the outgomg Chatr, Paul Sadler. who has chatred the 
Commtttee for the past 8 years 

Aged care has contmutd to undergo ~lgntftcant reform over 
the past 12 months and much of the work of thP Commrtteeo 
has focused on ISsues artstng from .:urrent ~forms, such 

as the establishment of My Aged Care end the Region.al 
Assessment Ser.ices, and planning for the next tranche of 
reforms which Will commence tn February 2017. 

The Communtty Advtsory Committee continues lo work 
closely wtth the ACS Sector Oe-ietopment and Transit ton Uml 
and thetr support of broader mdustry networks such iS the 
Communrty Issues Forum Th1s approach has positioned 
ACS dS the pnmary vo1ce for communrty aged care across all 
aspects of a very dwerse sector 10 NSW and the ACT. 

Ounng the year. the following guest speakers presented at 
the Community AdVISOI')' CO!Tlmtttee meetings. 

• Jane Floyd and Gillian McFee • NRMA LIV!ng Wnll 
Nav~gator 

• Sally Ross - Director, NSW/ACT Complamts Operaf1ons, 
Aged Care Complaants Comnwss1oner 

• Karen Ansen lACS IR Teamf- Drug and alcohol testmg '" 
the worlcplac:e 

BUILDING MEMBER CAPABILITY 
As WE'll as focusing on the aged car& reforms, th1t Committee 
dealt With a number of operat1onal1ssues ana helped address 
many member enquiries mdudrng practices around caseload 
man'agement sm~e the Implementation of ronsumer o1rected 
care. cont1ngenc1es, ~mergency procedures for manag1ng 
lom) workers m the held, emergmg Or]anisatlonill structures 
m home care. man.aging travel CC>Sts; anu H•.anaging brokerage 

arrangements. ACS ts grateful for the advice of the Commrttee 
members on these current practice tssues and for generously 
sharmg their expertise and resources to assist our memb&rS 

The CommrtteeassiSted 1n the planmng of a one daycommunrty 
forum Secunng Our Place m the f-Uture held 1n November 
With 162 people attending- to a!»Jst members prepare for 
th~ next wave of reforms lt was a hugely successful day, 
wrth a r~presentative from the Department of Social Services 
providing updates on the next round ot reforms as welt as 
presentRtton~ on: what the reforms mean for the Sf:fVlce und 
busmess model$ for not for proht prOVldeffi and how our value 
proposttions can beoefrt orgamsattonal sustainabJI.tty. what 
1he reforms mean for the consumer " provtder relatronshtp, 
how to manage brokerage arrangements, and emergmg 
tssues dunng transition to the Commonwealth Home Support 
Program. Providers shared leam~ngs about new systems and 
models of care that they have implement&d to help se<:ure 
thear place 10 the future 

SECTOR INFLUENCE & ADVOCACY 
Thtt Comm1ttee members pro~~~ded valuable contnbuttons to 
the fotlow1ng coflsultallons and subm}SStons· 

lnmaalng Chofce In Home Care - Stave 1 - Discussion 
Paper 

• Department of Soc1al Servtce6 request for feedback on 
the aged care Short-term Restorative Care Programme 
Po!Jcy ConsuUatton Paper 

• Australtan Aged Care Qualtty Agency • Let·s talk about 
quality Ot:vl.!toptng a shared underlitandmg of qualtty 
tn aged care serv1ces 

• Oesrgmng the new integrated carer support serv~ct -A 
draft servtce concept for the delivery of interventions to 
1m prove o~;tcome$ for carer 

• lncre.:asing cho•ce m home care - Stage 1 Proposed 
chonges to Aged Care Pnncrples and Oetenruna11ons 



• The Age1_ng and Oisab1hty Interface - National, Aged 
Care Alliance Olscuss1on Paper 

• Short· Term Restorat1ve Car. Programme Manual 

• NSW Legislative Council - General Purp0se Standmg 
Committee No 2~ Inquiry 1nto Elder Abuse. 

Information and data were prnVKfed by the Comm1tt"8 to 
support lobbying m relation to the ongotng 1ssues of Medicare 
payment prnbtems, Income tasting errors and operat1onal 
1ssues w1th My Aged Care. 

STRATEGIC ALLIANCES 
ACS has contmued to work collaborntive\y With a range ot 
stakeholder gro~.;ps to enhance member capactty. in lht 
provis1on of community and m home servtces 1nctudmg. 

• The Futures AlLiance - to advocate f~r and fat1htate 
cross sector recogmtlon and stJpport for people with 
disabilities as t-hey age 

• Case Management Outcomes Research Collaboration­
m partnership w1th Macquane Unrverslty, Umvers1ty of 
Wotton gong and a number of aged care providers. year2 
of ARC Research fv11d1ng to pilot a measure of outcomes 
of case management m community care. -Ageing Well 
at Home: Mtasurmg the Impact of Commumty Cere for 
Older People 

• B1hngual, Bicultural Workers Workmg Party -
parltctpatJon 1n the work1ng group - resource Mak1ng 
a <iltference. Language and ~lture m the Home Care 
Standards 

• Home Care loday. ProJect Consultation Group 

• NSW Steering Committee Prevention of Abuse of Older 
People 

• Community A~emg m Place: Advancing Better LIVIng 
for Eld~rs with Cognitive Impairment (CAPABLE-C) -
Expert Reference Group 

• Workforce Recru•lmint ProJect (Care Carears/ 
proJ.ectABLE J • Stakeholder Group 

• AustraLian Aged Care Quality Agency- Agency Liaison 
Group 

• Aged Care Complamts CommiSSioner Industry Lia1son 
Meetmg 

The Committee has appreclited the professional support 

from L1sa ltalphs, ~llc:heUe Newman and the whole N:,S team 
dunng 2015·'16. 

I look forward to contmumg to work With the Comm1ttee as we 
embark on the next, t1nd perllaps most SIQntfiCent community 
aged care reforms that we have ever seen 
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HOUSING & RETIREMENT LIVING 
ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

CHAIR: RON THOMPSON 
STAFF SUPPORT: ELIZABETH TEECE 

T he role o: the Hous1ng & Re: llrement LJvil'g Advisory 
Committee JS to advise the /I.CS Polley Unrl on matlP~ 

:hat w1ll asstsi ACS and 1ts member organrsati~s pi"OVlde 
rettrement Villages 1rd affordable, appropnate housrng for 
older people 10 NSW and the ACT 1n a manner that meets 
the peeds of both res1dents ano PfOVldl'f"S., Comm1ttee 
members are appointed by the ACS Board selected from a 
ltst of nomtnees put forward b)' member :>rgan1sahoi'\S. The 
Committee met four ltmes dunng the ftnancrat year ponod 
2015-2016 

W1thm the rontex1 of major agid care reforms, the ind.-pendent 
IJYJng sedDr constantly re-cllam1nes lhetr del!VE tY oftenngs 
and w;rr.. of conductmg bus r.ess i hc; Com:n~Uce has he~c 

to !Jillde and Inform members on thts pro~ss 

STRATEGIC ALLIANCE 
• ACT 3 Peak:; Meeting - Retrreml'nt V1Llages Resident:;, 

Assoc1atio!1 !RV'RAI. RettJ cment Living Council IRLC) and 
ACS continued to hold meethlgs to tdenttfy i!.sucs ar:d 
formuLat~ solutions for n!sidetot$ and operators. 

• Relln!ment _ Vlllag~s ConsullattVe Forum - ACS 
partiCipates 111 mdustry meetings to revtew and propose 
bettr;' pnKesses for the rellrement villages section of the 
NSW Ctllil and Admlm~rattve TnbunaliNCAi) 

• Fo1 ~.~m of Non Gomnmem Agenctes !Fr;JN$AI - m~ung 
~tmonthty, this Forum which 1s compn!>ed c1 state-wido 
~mmun.rty peaks. reg1onal and slate Wide organisations~~ 
com-,med by the Council of Soctal SoN!Ce of NSW (NCOS51 
It s~ks to deliver the best results fnr communities across 
a range o' issues 1nclu:hng social hous•ng 

• NSW Agemg AUtance - established to nromote tht: 11(1td, 

nghts and mterests of all people m NSW aged 50 y~ars 
and over mdudmg houSing, health and c;m~ ser~ICeS l~ 

devetops posibons and advocates o" 1ssues and promotes 
pohctes for trr.plementation by gowmment and tndustry. 

• ACS!· Pohcy Gro~o Meeting which tr.dudes semors 
ho~tslflg 1ssues - t~cs pilrtlclpat~$ on tflts n::ttJonal 

netw:>rk ACSA ts represeflted on th .. Nat1onal Aged 

Care t.LI.aance INACAI Affurdabll! Housing Interest Group 
NACA's Bluepnnt S~Jries June 2015 Enhancmg the quality 
of ltfe of older people through better support and care 
tncluded a sactton on ~,rnprovmg access to approprtate 
hou!img for older people". 

PROJECTS 

• Senter$ Housing n Rettreme11l L1vmg CIJf'lferer!re - ThiS 

eownt, attended by 61 ~pll:, WB$ helc 111 May 2016. It 

covered topttS •ncludtng flltura trends 1n sen1ors' housmg, 
not-for-profrts as s:<~nd3Ut!; 1n ;~rov'<th and 1onovatior>.. 

how active ageing ts no longer an cpuonal eKtrLI in today's 

enlltronrnent. recent research and tool!l deveLo?~ by 

Alzheill\er's Australia ~SW to ass1st a smatt but growmg 

cnhort tn our lflll:Jges. vano.Js housing models and 
opportunities includmg the foretgn land thl'lt 1s Communtty 

Housmg, servto'! mtegrated housmg 1n practice. co­

housltlg. what this might mean to re5ttfents and providers, 
IJVeable housrng doM;~gn exp4'nenre by QLD Churches of 
Chnst and how to deal With the vexed •ssue of hoardtng 

an<.! squalor 

• Affordable Houstng Mcdldls for R•brement V1Uage 
Operators Sem1nar - Th1s sem1nar was led by housmg 

leaders Mike Fun1er General Manrtger, &pttstCare. 
Magnus Ltndsr Ex!'c:Jtiva Otf1cer. Churches Ho;.~smg 

>~nd Wendy Hayhurst CEO. NSW F'edPr:ltton of Houstng 

Associations. It hdped to esplalr. how !he affurdabte 
houSing 5p-'1ec- works and what oppnrtumt1es arl! around 

Th•rty-two peotl.ll attended from 2L d1fferent orgarusabcns 

mnin\y from the Sydney, Hunter 'lnd Centrat Coast regions 

16 "'I At)e-J ,, t T,.'C"tty S~t'll(~>.>~l\IV & l,r::r,_ ______________________________ ~ 



• RetJ.ren11mt V1tlages Management C;ourse - ThiS course 
cor.hnu~ to be Ill strong demand. It •s desigm•d for 
people new to a rettrement VIllage management rete or as 
a ref11!Sher course. The colArse ran two trmes in the year 
w1th 29 peopt. attendmg. 

• ACT Retirement VrUages Act ~eVJew - the ACT 
Government conducted a reVIew of the Act w1th ACS as a 
key stakeholder The ReVIew culmrna1ed in the Ratirement 
Vrllages Amendment 81ll 2016 which takes effect on 16 
December 2016 

COMMITTEE MEETING PRESENTATIONS 
The C01r1mrttee heard from several speakers on current 
ISStJes dunng the year. 

• NSW Ret1remer:tl Vrllages Resldent!.Assoaatton - Dorothy 
Swanton and Jim Ketaher presented on r~s1dent rssues. 

• NSW Rett.rement Vitlages Regulations Reo-1ew - Adam 
Heyoon. Maflager Polley and Leona Fernandez from NSW 
Fa1r Tradlng gave an update on the review process and 
1der.trf1ed Issues to date The Review whrch commenced 
rn 201 S was deferred by the Govemmer.t untll2017. 

• Home Energy ActiOn (HEAl program • Jacou1e Russell, 
ProJect Off1cer, Sustainable Households ~nd N1cola 
Goulsti!h&; IIISW Oqpt of Plannlng and Environment 
The HEA program ]$ a rl'laJor program w1th a budget of 
$26.6 n::>ltron and IS funae~ untrl30 June 2017 Its brief 
l~ to assist vulnerable households wrth anergy hardshrp 
.-eprasentlng s1gn1flcant benefits for elrg1bla seniors 
housing and ~sidents. 

• Smart Ener~y 1n1t1attves -Tony Whit~ Supply Manager, 
Corporate Serv1ces, Church Resources one of ACS's 
Corporate Affiliates ana a represertatrve from its 
partner orgams;:rt~on AOL gave a preser. tatlon of solar 
pantl optton5 available for retrrement VIllages ,,nd 
relahttJ Issues 

Appraoat1on go~s to the members ot the Committee over 
the year 1or t ~elr WIH CCJunset. dedrcattoR ar.d support. We 
aclcnowledga tf'le support oi ACS staf. and, m particular, 
Elizabeth Teeca's wpport of the C01r1mltte&. ACS IS grateful 
that the members ccntrnue to share resoun:&s and advice 
or: cumant practice. We look forward to a year of axplormg 
opportunities end resourc1n!; our members 1n their provision 
.ot housmg and retirement liVIng setv1cos 
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WORKFORCE 
ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

CHAIR: DAVID GOODHEW 
STAFF SUPPORT: GEOFF LIGGINS & ANNA-MARIA WADE 

ACS TEMPLATE ENTERPRISE 
AGREEMENT 201,w2017 
Following successful na!J1lltattons for a template Enterpnst 
Agreement m 2014 and 1mplementat1on of 16 Enterprise 
Agreements 10 2015, a further :.!0 applications for approval 
of Enterpnse Agreements have been lodged wtth and 
subsequently .Jpproved by the Fa1r Work Commtsstol1 
Several of these Enterpnse Agreements were 'lanaltons 
of the Template and requtred further negottatton between 
the members and the umons Two Enterpnse Agreements; 
were challenged by the Commtsston on the oo~1s of the 
Better Off Overall Test The Agreements were approved on 
the condtbon that the members made sev.:ral undertakmgs 

SAFEWORK NSW RESIDENTIAL AGED 
CARE PILOT PROJECT 
Several members of the Workforce Adv\Sory Commtttee 
IWACJ were mvolved tn the resldenttal Aged Care Pflot 
Project Implemented by SafeWork NSW. Employee' 
Relattons sought to determme the scope and nature of the 
proJect and met wtth SafeWork NSW to dtsr.uss this and 
how to tmprove the relat1onsh1p between the regulator and 
ACS, wtth particular emphasts on commumcat1on w•th lhe 
WAC and WHS Sub Commtttee The proJect was atmed at 
assessmg several areas of mterest to SafeWork NSW and 
~e aged care sector based on 1nsurance CWIIm stattstlcS 

These tncluded manual handltng, sLips, tnps aml falls and 
vtolence 1n the workplace. Regular communtcatton 1s now 
occumng between the two org&ntsattons and SafeWerk 
NSW ts due to rele111se the hndmgs and recommendations 
ol Ute pilot project tn the near future 

DRUGS AND ALCOHOL POLICY AND 
TESTING 
Fotl',wtng the Coroner's lnquuy 1nto the Quakers Htll 
Nursmy Home F1re, Empl()}'ellRelattons has,m consultatJon 
wtth rndustry vta the Workforce Advtsory Commtttee, 
commenced a project to develop a Drugs and Alcohol Polley 
ipectftc to the Aged Care sector, 

4 YEAR MODERN AWARD REVIEW 2014 
The 4 year Modern Award Revtew commenced 1n 2014 
Employee Relations ha5 made several applications With 
the support of the WAC to defend cla1ms from the various 
unions on the rel.avant Modem Awards 

The award-specific applu:attons are be1ng dealt wtth 111 fout 
groups of around 30 awards· 

• Group 2 contams Nurses AW1Jcd 201 D <OH<I the Health 
J.5roh!sst.onals and Support Services Awarrl201 0 and Is 
still b1M9 d~a tt wtth by the Fair Work Comr;ussion -
wntten submtsstons w.1 c made 111 July 2015 

• Group 4 contains the Aged Care Award 2010 ilnd the 
Soc tal, Communtly, Home Core and 01sabtltty Serv1ces 
Industry AW>lrd 2010 Thts revtew has commenced and 
to date, Employee Relattons has made an application 
and s.ubmrsston and has made comments on the 
exposure drafts fur these awards With the assistance 
of tnput from members of the WAC 

Several WAC membE-rs are provtdmg evrdence regardmg 
flextbiltty JSSues and roster changes Wllhtn the 7 day not tee 
penod provtd€·d for ir. the awaros The WAC has also asr<isted 
Employee Relations 111 orovidfng input tnto common award 
is!'ues mcluding provtstons ~or annual leave, part time and 
casual employees. 



ACT PORTABLE LONG SERVICE LEAVE 
SCHEME -INCLUSION OF AGED CARE 
INDUSTRY 
Pnor to the etect1on, the ACT Labor Government .prom1sad 
to Include Aged Care 1n the Commumty Serv~ces Sector 
Portable LSL Scheme Employee Relations sought mpul 
from the WAC mto a JOint letter (With L.ASAJ sent to the 
ACT Government The letter was wntten 1n oppOSition to 
the scheme and the argument was supported by o-ther 
employltf'S and the CanbarTe Busm&SS Chamber Desp1ta 
repeated JOint lobbymg, the ACT Government tabled the 
long Service Leave IPrartable Schemes) Amendment Bill 
on 7 Apnl2016 and the scheme commencel11 July 2016 

BUILDING MEMBER CAPABILITY 
The WAC and WHS Sub Comm1ttee have continued to 
provide members with guidance and advice in lme w1th the 
requln!mentsofthe WHS teg1slahon andgood governance m 
relation to work, health and safety and lndustnal retat1ons. 
The safety benchmarking project 1s still progressmg and 
the WHS Sub Comm1ttet IS wori<Jng on developmg 1 user 
tnendly benr:hmarking tool wh1ch Will be rolled out tiJ 
members When ftnallsed 

The WAC contributes each yeartottte Frontllt'le Conference 
The 2015 event was held at the Novotel Bnghton Beach 
on 19 November The programme mcluded e summery 
of the Coroner's fmdmgs tollowtng the mquest mto the 
Quakers Htll Nursmg Home ftre, disCuSSion regarding 
tmplementtog a dn:gs and alcohol pol!~ and testing 
reg1me ant! a presantatton by SafeWork NSW on 1he 
Restdenttal Aged Care P1lot PrcJect. The day ended w1th 
a presentatiOn on employee !ngagement and results by 
ColJn Boyd of Oxygen Coachmg 

The feedback n!C&~ved from part1c1pants was extremely 
poSJtive w1th some saymg it was the best fror.thne forum 
they had a«ended. The WAC has also been asslst_mg ACS 
w1th suggested top1cs and speakers for the 2016 Frontline 
Conference wh1ch IS to be held on 19 October 

The WAC also contnbu1es 1dees for mclus1on m the monthly 
lndustnal News and WHS Updates for members 1n NSW & 
ACT as well as to the monthly Industrial News Update tor 
members1n Tasmama and across the country 
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LEARNING & DEVELOPMENT 
ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

CHAIR: ALEXANDRA ZAMMIT 
STAFF SUPPORT: JANET GLASER 

In November 2015, I was appomred Ch011r- Learrung & 

Development AcivtsCiry CommrttPe anci ~el priVIleged to 

be part ot this vibrant and active comrn1ttoe l wQuld hKe to 

acknowl.&dge my predecessor, Helen Wilson {resigned) for 

her COI'Ilnbut1on and enthus1asm 

The Leammg & Development AdVt:;::~ry Committee offers 

strategic .adv1ct> to the Learnmg Centre regarchng the 

quai.Jty and brnadth Qf 1ts educationlil products. In add1t1on. 

thm Committee provides e5$entlal 1ndustr1 consultation 

which contnbules to the compliance of ACS' Registered 

Training Orgao•salion 

The Committet has been parttcular!y act1ve th1s year 

cootnbuting to consultations regm:ilng the Voc~ti onal 

Education and Training Sector reb rms iJI'I~l the dwc·toprnent 

of thn new quatrhcations for D1rect Care Wor!<crs 

AGED CARE WORKFORCE VOCATIONAL 
AND EDUCATION TRAINING (ACWVET) 

Forth~ last 4 years ACS has enJoyed the benefit of ACVNE:r 

f~;ndtrg to offer fully fundari traimng to our members. Th1s 

h;ndiog ;n tts current format ceased to March 2016. 

The f1nal c:ohorl of 59 students SL;Ccessfully con-'pleted the 

Certtflc::;te IV tn Aged Care or Certlftt.ate IV m Frontl1ne 

Management. Toe exceptional succesll rate of 90% 1s due to 

the hard work ol t~e students, who are to be congratulated 

and the comm1tr.tent of the tramers. Jackr Payer ano 

Chnstme Newsome. Our aoprec1ation goes to the follow1ng 
organisations who ho<;ted the courses. 

• Bemgan and Otstnct Aged Care 

• l..,utheran Aged Care· Albury 

• Port Stephens Vet~r·ans snd C1t1 ~c.>m: Aged Care 

REGISTERED TRAINING ORGANISATION 
(RTO) 

Work has c" mmenced to add the followmg new 
qual1f1Cflh01:s to ttie RTO scope 

• Certificate 1!11n Individual Support 

• Certif1c.ate IV in AgPing Support 

• Certificate N if"' Leadership and Management 

The L~arniH9 and DeveLopment Advt~ory Commtttee has 
playeci an mtegral role m the validation of Tret:mng and 
Asse~sment Strateg1es and other course related matenal.s 

ONLINE COURSES 
There has been a steaoy mcre<~se m the number of 
stuo ents accessmg coul'!;es vie1 our Elearr.mg portal. There 
hr-Jve been two spec tal promnttcna! drtves th110 year where 
s.eloded courses were reduced t:> half pnce Tho pr~m:Jt1on 
of the Dementia online courses was part1cularty successful 

i'otal studenls: 926 students 

EDUCATION CALENDAR 
The! earning Centre along w1th a team of highly ~rofessloo&t 
tramers and facilitator~ concnue to offer a w1de vanety of 
lndu5try felevant courses on the Educat1on Calendar m 
Rhodes, rural and regtonallocattons. 

New CL>Lorseco mtroduceu to meet member demand and 
:.up port sector chang~ Include 

• Putting the 'B.Jslness· mto your Home Cart Serv~c€' 

• Industry ConsotiOOI!I'n suateglt Options 

• Knc;1w Your Prudential ResponstbiHIIes 

• Community Care Marketing your serv1cM In o 
competitiVe enVIron men! 

• Underst.:~nd1ng Home Ca~ Packages CDC &.. CHSP 
Mannamg lrdtvit.J,mljc;eil hmdmg 



COURSES OFFERED 
• 55 Rhode'> 1709 partlttpants) 

• 36 rural and regtonal venues (397 part1ctpantsl 

• 1 Oueenslano 19 parttcipantsl 

• 31 Cnstte (50? p.art1ctpantsl 

OTHER EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES 
In addition to the face to face courses 11nd onbr.e course·s 
other SU~Sidtsed edutetlonal opportuntl18!1 made avatlable 
to ACS members thiS year mclude 

• VOCAM - Safety TV 

• NSW Business Chamber 

o Otgital Marketmg on a Shoesrnn~ Budget 

o fhe Future of Marketing m Aged Care 

• Tht: OHtc• of EnVIrOnment and Hentage 

o Energy Efhctency tn Agea Care 

• Partnerships to access Smart and Slulled fundmg 

o North Coast TAFF - 220 student& 

o BCA Na!tonet Training Group - 242 students 
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY 
ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

CHAIR: MARK SEWELL 
STAFF SUPPORT: I LLANA HALLIDAY 

T he Comm1ttee met 31imes in the year, as well as takmg 
advantage of various opportunitiP.S provlded by the 

Office of Env1ronmont and Hentage NSW and a successful 
event run by Maroba 

There are 10 members on the Corrmiltee. inclvding a 
representative from the Cfflce of Environment & HentagE> 
NSW. Sustamablllty Will continue to grow 1n 1ts Importance 
to the sector. 

The MCQA offered a Better Practice award forsustamab1lity, 
Which ~adly they could not award as applKants d•d not cover 
the criterion around benefits to clients welt. However, we 
ar~ hop1ng this award •mU promote good pracUce in the area 
and that the exc1ting 101t1atives pr~viders tiave implemented 
w1tt be rewarded next t1me 

In the 2016 ACS Awards for Excell&nce, the award for 
the Gareth WillJamson Sustainability Award was won by 
Southern Cross Care They have "" ~cellent h1story of 
working on sustamabrhty across many s1tes 

There were arttcles on sustatnab'rllty 10 30% of Bnef Up dale 
published 1n the year Predominantly these art icles were 
on grant opportuneties, education. htnts or access to toots. 

The Comm1ttf.e contlnul!'s to grappl~ With how to best ext&nd 
the uptake of the Sustalflabrlity Advantage program as 1t has 
so many opportulllties for orgamsations to Improve the1r 
pract1ces. Sadly only 6 members have nct1ve pilrtlctpatlon 
in the program at present. Several aged care prov1d~;rS wha 
are active in the Susta1nability Advantage program M\19. 
been 1nvited to join the Committe~. We are delighted to hear 
that 2 longstandJI'\g members are n.ow 1n pursuit of a gold 
rabng WJth the Susta1r.abit:!-J Advantage program and we 
look forward to hewtng more about th(l1r JOUmey 

It has been han:i to gam a focus on envtronmental 
.sustainability during the confusing and complex rollout 
of the aged care reforms. Oesp1te thl!5, some activit1e5 
have been popular We were able to determ1ne that m a 
combination :>f 119 sites, aged care provtders are spendtng 
over $2m on waste d1sposal Other popular act•ons are the 
mstaUahon of solar panels, energy effiCient lighting. worm 
farming and comp.osrtlng, and battery storage and use, 

Tl'lo aged care environmental sustaunabthty sect1tm of the 
ACS website remarns ·very popular, w•th over 600 h1ts In 
the year The area mcludes many free toots, posters, DVD~ 
and mformation on how to get started on a sustamab1l1ty 
program 

The Commrttee was privileged to have some exceHent 
presentations dunng the year. Royal Fr&e!Tl<lsons· 
Benevolent Institution, [ast year's Award for Excellence 
wmner.s, shared thetr ground breakmg work m measunng 
the1r carbon footprint m real time David Smda1r from 
Stewart8rown prov1ded an ovel"Vlew of the data they collect 
on susta1nab1ltty and have offered to do additional analysiS 
to determtne flnanciallmpa~ts of ESD prmciples 



AGED CARE BUILDING 
COMMITTEE 

CHAJRS: ILLANA HALLIDAY & CHARLES WURF 

T h1s C:--mminea is a jornt on~ wnh l ASA NSW-ACT and 
prcr11des a r:at1onal overstght ar d f@t-dback on all thing! 

to do wrth bu1ld1n9 an:! dev&l~pment. The bulk of Coml'tlittee 
mM'!bers are bU1ldrng proi@Sironals who generously 
danate therr trme and experlrse to the sector. We cot.ld not 
have supported aged care providers appropnatety wrthout 
the mvaluable assrstance of these Commrttee members 

The Committee met 5 tll'l''Uis over thi! year, wrth the- maJor 
rtem bemg the leg1slateJ requ1ramont to retrofit ~~~ 

spnnkters mto &ll aged care lacllrl1es. By wor:<rng closely 
wlth the staff ,Jt the OepartmMt nf Planninl} & Enwonrnent, 
we ach1eveod adJustmt'ntr. to the requ1remeots argunc 
postponemer.ts and supportE>:J lhe smooth rollout r f the 
prf\gram 

Sprmklers are a maJor gooo news story lor older peoptr 
tn NSW O•ter 93% o~ facilrlres have now completed the 
pr'Jgram ar.d have luncti:lnrng &prinkl!!rS. The remarmng 
factl1t1es have either obtained a postponement du1:- tc 
complexities wrth the1r srte, or the fact they are plann1ry 
to close and move the rest dents Into n~w bu1ldmgs. We are 
well on track to having 100% of facllrt!e5 wi th funct1omng 
r;pnnklers by end March 2017 fh1c; IS desptte several 
smaUer standalone fac1lltres struggling to find the funds, 
t)ut with strong advocacy they obtarned grants. and are now 
tmpl.ementtng the works Thr5 has been a maJor call on 
the ~ources of the sector, and Is U11U$Ual work. Th1s 
has meJI:t that several orvantsattons have struggled to 
Cllmplete the necessary regulatory hoop's ar,d they are st1ll 
struggling to get frnal sign off. rh<' departmt;-ntal staff hav• 
been very he:ph.rl as wra wotk through various dtff!!nmt 
councrls to get the papcf'\'lork \:IO!le 

The other work of the Comtnrttu tl'lcluded 1ts ongo1ng 
. advocacy. Thts year that included the Semors Uving SEPP 
wrtl' a part1t1Jlar need to fn .. claus~ 26 wh1ch pertains to the 
proximity of Shopr, a.nll lran~port. rhrs clause IS betng used 

by some councils to refuse the Srgnrb·.ant Refurb1shment 
developments, and to preV9nl new tac1littes from 
prvceed1ng We are fatting behind the numb!'r of beds that 
Of@ needed to b~ st:pplied rn NSW and ACT, ~o th1s barner •s 
b'' ""!l tackled With the staff of the L>epar1m~nt, the Mtnrster 
tor ?tul1nrng I!Od the Greater Sydney Cornm1sstor 

Anothflr major point of OJdvoracy has been on the standard 
for body protscMn from electri2l medleal equtpmcrt 
(AS:J003). Submtss1ons and represent:1t1ons <tre bemg 
made to the. Standards Board 

Over 80 P~;)J)Ie attended the IJestgn & Construction !'orum 
th1s year As a recommondat1on of the conferer:ce, the 
Cornmrttee 1s work1ng on some gu1delrnes on how best to 
reduce- staffrng and cperattonal costs by good des1gn. 
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FINANCIAL ISSUES 
ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

CHAIRSe STEVE WALKERD£N & STEVE TEULAN 
STAFF SUPPORT: !LLANA HALLlDAY 

We WO\lld Uke to thank the 30 members of ih~ 
Cornm1tto;e who have pruVJdP.Cl adv1ce or many 

Important IS~~ss throughout thu year. Tl)e Comm1tte~ met 
~ t1mes a:od supported a one day ~ympor.JL;rn with arot.:nd 
14{) people attend10g thts @>vent as waH .as vanous other 
semmars and educational actiVIties dunng the year. 

Thrnughou l the yec~r the Comm1ttae had a major focus 
on the ongomg disruptive char.ges bemg made to 
Commonwealth fundang for ,,ged can!l services. The 
MVEFO started 8 procns of cut3 t~at weN: '.Jcexpe("ted due 
to poor consultation. Fundamentally lhe sector disputes 
that the Governmerat's mod~lling or trends arQ accurately 
portnymg lhe real acuity ond costs of pnovid1ng appropn~te 
care. The constant changmg of lhe funding tool mnkes '' 
imposstble to construc:t reb<Jbln budgets or appropriately 
staff seiV!ces The latest round of proposed cuts are 
expected to cause staffmg reductions a~ 1t IS 11'1'1pr.~ssible tor 
most faciliti~>s to absorb the cuts or ~djt~st f,Cfl claims in 
the way thr~t htl.:> previously been poss1ble. nus means It 1s 
now t1me to push for a new funding model. one that better 
meets the Government's need to cap expenditure white 
allowmg pnov1ders and cllentli scope to nagot1ate on pnce s 

An enofTTlous amount cf t1me is bemg lost by providers 
needmg to chase m1ssed or Inaccurate pay111ento; from the 
Government. DMplte lobbying, the cost of the conr.tant 
double ,..andling cf mforma11cn llt'ld mistakes 1s not 
recognu;ed by the Department 

There has been considerab\e work n~oded, and a variety 
of solutiOns. to address fm;~ncial nlporting for consumer 
d:recled care 11ackages. Many pnovtol'ts have struggl-ar! 
to prnv1dP. t l<':lr statements for cli~r.ts, partially due 
to latP comrntmici'Jlicn ul bus1ness ro1es from thl3 
Government The retro-.:pect1~ r.h.1r!ges to how to hendt~J 

dtent continqcf1 :::iE!s ts creatmg a new cornpucatton to the 
management and rr,portmg of ac:count balances. 

The Department 1salso revieWing their system for paymt>nts 
to Rf,CFs, but few details arc avarlabte at tbrs Sla9e 

It has been a dlfhcutt climote 111 wh1ch ·'to c~te and 
rmplemont good fmi.lnc1al ~ystems. The Committee 
surveyed ACS merrbers to ~xplore what systems were 
tn use. A large number Jf members are Mav1ly reliant 
on 'lXcel s~readsheets, and as expected rnany smaller 
:Jrgar.lsati::Jns most o~ttn are usin!l m-"ouse sy!.tt~ms 

rolher than the sophisttcat•d products 

As part of 1he planned revr.t~w ot the Living LongP.r Livmg 
Better reforms, the Governmenl appears committed to 
r~mov1ng 11~ ltabllit; for the Refundable Accommodation 
Deposits. A working party of the Committee IS rJevetoprng 
opt1ons to put forward to Governmel'!t around how best to 
mane1g11 what IS a very smell nsk for Government, although 
potantinlly a g1 Jwmg nsk. 



PROCUREMENT 
ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

CHAIR: ALEX SHAW 
STAFF SUPPORT: MIRA SANDRE & LIBBY LIDDLE 

The ACS Prot"urement Advisory Committee (PAC) 
has prog:-essed the opportumt1es :of lookmg at 

benchmarktng particular products and servtces. The 
process has been to establtsh an ACS PAC bP.nchmarklng 
spreadsheet located tn Google ensuring conf1dent1ality 
for both members and product supplters. Establ1shtng the 
cnterra for mclus1on were cntical as 1t ensured the data 
captured wa'i both rehtvanl and measura~le and would 
be able to provtde our members w1th a data prictng scale 
The ACS PAC. 1s currently worktng towards populating 
the spreadsheet Wlth Continence Management products 
and pnces 

There contin~.oes to be a valuable exchange of informab::ln 
wtth1n the Committee on other areas v11th dfscussto-r.s 

focustng on energy pricing, waste and untforms. These are 
valuable and ass1st w1th an insrght mto the best means of 
handlmg tenders. 

The ACS Procurement Portal continues to prov1de an on­
line optron for tenders and the Commtltee is continUing to 
mveshgate the opportumttes avatlable for our members to 
tender VJa thrs process 

Corporate Assoc1ates presentmg to the Committee 
contmue to be a valuable opportumty for both members 
and suppliers. We rece1ved presentattons from several 
Corporate Assoc•ates, wrth a notable presentation from 
Country Care, who jotned as a Srt"'r Sponsor ot ACS wtth 
strong capacities to work m the community sect(}!" of Aged 
Care It is the strength of these relatlonshtps that contmue 
to garn beneftts for our member!' 

It is the objectiVE! of the Committee to contmue looking at 
new and exctttng rmtratwes that will b&nef;t our members 
and focus on buymg !letlavlours to tdentffy how we can 
consol1dat' pun;hasmg and ·gam econom1es of scale for aU 
our members 
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HACC 
TRANSITION PROJECTS 2015-16 

MICHELLE NEWMAN- SECTOR DEVELOPMENT & TRANSITION MANAGER 

2 0 15 16 Will. anolhPr ,..-ar of signtflatnt 
• chang" for the commun11y agcll 

core ~tor anci an extremt:.J' bl.lsy ~enr b r thC' Sector 
Development & TransJtlon Team (note change from HomP 
and Commun1ty Care [HACCI Tran511!on Team t:» beltot 
tl'llect the changes w1thtn the sector! Cn 1 .:uly 2015 
the. new Commonwealth Home Support ProQram (CHSPJ 
commenced, ~1gn1fy1ng the most substantial reform to 
the community 1n-home support prognlrns for the last 
30 years. CHSP IS a consolidation ot tt)e Commonwealth 
HACC Program, ptanned resptte from the Na.ttonat Re!.p:te 
for Carers Program INRCPI, the DavTherapy Centres (DTC) 
Program and ttoe Asststal'ce With Care and Housmg f~r the 
Aged (ACHAI Program 

Ttus c1'1nge was momentous for many m the sector, 
mdudmg our own Mellnda Patterson Who after 18 yean as 
a 'HACC DO' l!ecame Sutherland ShiJY; Sector Support & 
Oevelopment Oft:c;er (SSOOI. For ACS members and tt'!e 
se<;.tor one of the most stgnrftcant changes 1n the transttlor 
to CH~P was the mtroduction of a ceotrahsecl gateway -
My Aged Care IMACI - as the now entry pomt 1nto agod 
care The role of asse.c:;sment moved to the MAC Regtonal 
Assessment Servtce 1RASI whrch rs now responsrbl~ tor 
conductrng face-tc-fac" assessments of :.l:ler people 
seeking entry· level support at home, pt OVlded under CHSP 
There we~ many challtmQes tor proVIders and consumer-5 
~likP with the m~roductam of this new syst~ anci thto 
Transltron Te.tm worked rlo,.ely with pQlicy staff to advocate 
for the sector <lr.d seek reso!1Jtron to many of the 1ssu~s 

!r: <1ddition, th~: CHSP prw1ders ncgot1ated new grant 
agn,ements, implemented a m•w fees fr2mewor11. .i:lnd 
were 1ntroduce:J to a new penormance reportrng ;;y<Jem 
- the Data Exchange IDE.XI Many providers al~c r.>ceived 
an extens~tm of funding to '0 · 8 for most d1rect serv1cos, 
and wrestled w1th the ar.nouncen1ent that there would be 
a Cflnsoudation of Home Cue f'ackage IHCP) program and 
CHSP tntn cnl! tntegraled program from 2018 

At the same ttme these reforfl's in aged care were berng 
Implemented, many CHSP provtders wert :.~lso pl'l'panng 
tor the full rollout o! National Dlsabtl1ty Insurance Scheme 
{NDIS} and thp move from grant bl'lsed fundtng through 

Com1"1UI'ity care ~~pport Prl)gram (CCSPI to tndiVlcluahsed 
NDIS ~1nCI)lb from July£v l6. Th6 T~nsttion Team tt:rough 
Its various Protects has supported the sector thmt:gh these 
reforms and adYoc.>ted strongly on their bi:-half 

The followmg provtdes some highlights for the year ar.d 
:nsight mto the oroader work of the Team. 

ABORIGINAL SPECIFIC COMMUNITY 
FORUM 
In 1"'-' ~p~nse to concems ra•sea by Abongmal members, 
ACS portnered wrth the NSW Abor1gtnal Commun1ty care 
llathertn!) Cornmrttee, the NSW Communrty Care Ft>n.m 
(CCFI. the lllawarra Forum and the HACC Development 
Off1cer Network to conduct an AbongJnd\ specific ~rv1ce 
prov1der workshop in Sydney or. 31 July 2015 

The wori<shop proVIded current mforn1ation or the aged 
ce1 o reforms and explored the challenges and opportunihe!­
for Aboriginal services and the comrr:un111es they work with 
tn NSW. Ove,.. 75 representatives from Aborigrnal services 
;1ncludrng government and non-government agenetes) 
attended the workshop fl"'m across .NSW. A report was 
prepared that document' the key issues and ac:Mns raised 
by participants 

EORA ELDERS OLYMPICS 
ACS Aboriginal Sector Devetqpmert Offrcers (ASDOI held 
lhe1r second annuol Eora Elders OlymprcE- \.>vent during 
Sen•ors Week, 2016 Th1s year there were ot<x 75 Abongmal 
.~nctlor Torres Strati Islander people who part1c1pated in a 
~1090 of rnodifred tr<~dltiOPal 5portrng actrvrt1es such ~ts 

Kee';m, Gom .and 1:3urotnJin ao; well as several other bw 
tmpact games 

Partici~nts rncludeo c.llents of Aborig.nal Medtr."l SPrv~ce 
!Redfern}, Gunwal Abongtnal Corporat1on, Kurranulla 
Abongmal Corporallon and Wyanga Abongtr.al Ageti Care, 
and ~ustraltan Unity llormerly Abongrnal Homo Carel The 
event took place at Hurslvtlle 1\quatrc Centre ar.d had good 
med101 coverage mc:ludtng live streammg on ABC 92 wrth 
Wendy ~ 1.1rmer. A great day was had by aH and the games 
IIVere played in the <tpirit of goodWill and sportsmanshiP 



CAPACITY BUILDING PROJECT­
STATE·WIDE 
ihe ACS C1Jpac1ty Bu1ldmg proJect 1s funded under the 
Aged Care Servtce Improvement and Healthy Agemg 
Grants (ACSIHAGI program The project bu1lCis or- the 
strengths qf small aged care orgamsattons m ntg1onal 
and rural areas across NSW and ACT and provides a 
range of supports to 1r11prove the:r capac1ty m areas 
such as governance, planntng, operational management. 
wot1doree oevelopment, consumer toe.used outcomes 
Wtthm 01 wellness and reablemenl sei'Vlc;~r delivery model, 
and Jdenttfymg opportumties lor targeted networlung <~11d 

partnerstups 

The project ts dt~lt~\l:rea through e CO<lct,jng and mentortng 
approach a1med at bu1lding the capac1ty of management 
ar.d staff working m small organisations. Thss year 
52 orgar.1satu:ms expressed Interest tn partiCipating m the 
project and the team Was ~:~ble to support 38 organisations 
The feedback from the organ isatlon5 has been very postt1ve 
and ACS IS currently undertaking a formal •valuat1on of 
the proJect to gu1oe the next 12 months 

RESPITE PROJECT- STATE-WIDE 
The N<ltrona1 Respite Australia peak body closed this year 
and ACS was pleased to conttnue a small part of the great 
work that th ts orgar.1satton did lo support resp1te prDVIders 
1n both the aged care and disabtllty sectors. 

TheACS Resp1te proJect JSalmed etsupportmg the transition 
readiness of CHSP and CCSP r&SJHie provtders tn NSW ltfld 
ACT with a focus on wcrkmg wtth small organisations, 
part1cularty those 1r. regional, rural lind remote areas 
The project 1s funded through sector development funds 
from the Au5tralian Department of Health (OuHI and NSW 
Famtly & Communjty Services, Agetng Otsabtbty and Hom~ 
Care IAOHC) 

Th1s year Stage 1 of the project was completed Wtth a 
comprehenstve c.onsultat:on With small resp1te prov'!der.s 
across NSW and ACT tc IDentify the challenges facing 
them as the reforms prog• ess anci how the proJect can 
support them tlma:gh the reforms. The key obJactMls of 
the proJec.r are to · support respite organisations in the 
<;ommumly -:are system to el1g!lge with the r.forms~ mak& 
strateg1c (lec1s1ons l'bot.:t CBfP!City to part1cip1te in the 

Implementation of NOIS and CHSP; and &XtJllilre busmess 
models and opportumttes thid e11hance sustainablllty The 
fmat report frort: the consultations has been P~'~'~P8~ and 
w1l11nfluence the actiVIties for the ne~tt 12 months 

TRANSITION ASSISTANCE PROJECT 
ACS partl'\ered w1th thQ ADHC in managing the Transtt1on 
Asststal'lce Program ITAPI, a new $5m grant program to 
asstst d1sabi1Jty support providers 1n regional and remote 
al'eas of NSW to trans1tton to the NDIS 

TAP provtdes small organls;)tlons tn reg1or.al and remote 
Jreas the opportunity to tmplement key 1ntt1attves that w1ll 
better prepare them for the new selVICt landscape that the 
NO!S reform c. are detlvenng fortndiVlduats wtth e d isab1llty 
ACS receivlld 152 applications tor funds whsch were 
rwiewed by a three member panel "Po ~3 1 app\1cat1ons 
were re~;ommen(!ed for fundmg. i l1ls repres~nted 137 
lftsabltlty serv•r.e prov1aers 

The TAP funds will be distributed to orgamsat1ons tn 

July and ACS well conttnuE: to partner WJth ADHC !n 
mon•tonng the outcomes of the lr..;hvtduat projects over the 
nt'xl 1 2 months 

RELATED AGED CARE REFORM WORK 
The Transition Team continued to be actively engaged 
tn a range ot aged cart' l"l.'lcltcd acttv1t1es includm~. 

representmg ACSA and ACS on several national workrng 
grotJps; consultation With members ana tht' broader 
sector; prepanng submissions at a State and Nattonallevel, 
organtstng and speaktng at commumty care forums across 
the State; working Witt': DoH, DSS end LASA to deltver 
reg1onal mformatton and tratntng sesstons, organtsrng 
Aged Care Expos and forums Wtlh RAS staff; hosttng and 
provtdmg secretariat support for the NSW Community Care 
Forum, and engaging With provtders on a one to one basis 

1ht- T111ns1tton learn would like to acknowledge the 
commitment ol all ACS staff if' supporttr:g the Transrtl~n 
Team to operate effectively and admNe !1\Jch pos1trve 
outeomes for members and the broader ~ector. In p.:i11!cular 
we huve worked closely wtlh the ACS Commumty Polley 
Advtser, lise Ralphs, and all members of the Community 
Advisory Commtttee ICAC) to support and strengthen the 
community ,.ged c3re nctor: 
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ACS WEBSITE STATISTICS 
1 JULY2015-30JUNE2016 
WEBSITE VIEWS BY AREA 

21,434 

Webs1te vtews from withtn Sydney 
Webilte v1ews from other areas 

INDIVIDUAL PAGE VIEWS 

TOP 5 WEBSITE PAGES 

1. ACFI COURSES 

2. NSW COURSES. 

3. Upcari,iog Even~ 

4. NSW Transfiion Assistance Progr~m 

5. Community Car~ Common Standards 

lAS MEMBER LIST 

ESP Hcalthcare 

Hakca Holdings Pty Ltd 

Home Nursing Group 

Just Better Care Australia 

l<onna Investments Pty Ltd 
-

Keverin Investments Ply Ltd 

Majestic Heallh Aged Care Pty Ltd 

Mel bar Pty Ltd !ABC Home Carel 

Nuwcastle & District Nursing Servitc 

NSW Home Support Services 

Oxley Home Care 

Premium Aged Care Servtces 



WEBSITE VIEWS 
BY SECTION 

PAGES 

Events 

I 

Cammunity Care 

AboutACS 

.Aged Care Reforms 

' Employee Relations . -

- -
•: Envlronmt?nt~l 5ustalnabi!lty . .. . ... ,, ' 

r- • T ' • 

· Cor~_oratc Assodill_f?.S 

· M~mbcrs Sections 

Working in Aged Care 

Public<Jtlons & Subm[ssions 

R_esidentlal Care 

R~~lrement Living 

'_?.prinklers 

·Media Releases 

PAGE VIEWS 

L.-131S 

9156 

7193 

5'162 

3022 

1873 

1150 

1436 

1079 

21'1 
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ACS CORPORATE 
SPONSORS 
ACS NSW & ACT Corporate Associates total83- that is 1 C National Partners, 
13 Corporate State Sponsors and 60 Corporate Associates. Ma1ny of these 
companies have supported ACS by participating in conferences, sponsoring 
events and participating in presentations to ACS Committees. 

Their support and active participation enhances the services we can offer 
members while also providing valuable sector feedback into the development 
of their products and services. ACS continues to build or. these relationships 
to strengthen the image and profile of the aged sector. 

To ensure this scheme is valued by ACS Associates, we encourag1e members 
to make use of the Corporate Associate section of the ACS website when 
sourcing new products and services [please note ACS does not endorse 
any particular supplier). Here you will find a categorised listing including 
company contact details and a link to the company's website. 

ACS continues to offer Corporate Sponsorship packages for those Corporate 
Associates who wished to gain a high level of exposure through ACS. The 
Diamond, Platinum, Gold, Silver and Bronze packages allow Corporate 
Associates to bundle their sponsoring, exhibiting and advertising together. 
The 2015/16 Diamond, Platinum, Gold, Silver and Bronze Corporate Sponsors 
are listed. 

ACS also acknowledges the support of the National Partners and State 
Corporate Associates for 2015/16. 

ACSA NATIONAL 
PARTNERS 

BenUeys 

. . 
DOCOMEMONDAY - . 

Hills Health Solutions 

~~ ... r •. • 

:.,!us-sell Kennedy 

• !homson Adsett 

: Wj!Uness & llfestytes 

FIRST STATE SUPER 

t•rst 
state super 

PAYNTER DIXON 
CONSTRUCTIONS 

COUNTRY CARE GROUP 
CHURCH RESOURCES 
HARTMANN 
HOLMAN WEBB LAWYERS 
PRIME SUPER 

AGED CARE FINANCIAL 
AO'.ftSaRS 

GOW-GATES INSURANCE 
GROUP 

HESTA 

PERFORMHR 

PROVIDER ASSIST 

STEWARTBROWN 
ACCOUNTANTS 



ACS STATE CORPORATE 
ASSOCIATES 

COMPANY 

.Ac.et.e_k ~ee Cilre Solultans 

.~vanced Oestgn Ctothtng Comwpany Lorra•ne Poulos & Associates 

Maxxio 

Aged Care? Steps MOF Group PI~· ltd : 

J'lgewell Physiotherapy Mtcrosolve 

AIM Software Pty Lid Mtrus Australia _ 

Ale: he my Technology Morgan Sti:lnley We.1Hh Mant:lgemenl Australia 

APP Corporalton Movmg on Audits 

,Atkinson \IIden P1y lid Nexn Health Pty Ltd 

.~Aus.trntmn Blindness r.orum NRMA 

· Babyboilmers Onlex Australia 

. 13est Priced Pharrqacy PJ Maynard Consulltng 

. Blackell. MacqUife -~ Gotusrnill, PASCOP 

Bunnlngs Dremter Consulting 

Bun~\ OPS Benchmarkmg 

Calder Flower An:hllects Ply Ltd Recovery Partners 

Catering lndusmes Ptv Ltd RSM Btro Cameron 
-

-:Coleman Greg LaWyers Salr:ly e. Mobility Ply ltd , 

·• Creek Solutions Stmav1tu 

Sirius Care 

·Eric Wood Consuttmg SILJtcr Byml:' Recoveries 

E· Tools Soflware Software North 

r.ileforce Sturdy Framac 

Gadrms Lawyers Supcrcure Property Servtccs 

The Drug Detection /~geocy 

Grinrlley Cunstructtons Totul Mobtltty 

Guarcltan Health Support Servtc;;-s Underwood & Assoctales 

~uman Care; Australia 

Independence AustraliCI Votce Project 

Webstercare 
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EVENTS IN 2015w16 PARTICIPANTS" 

- ---' CHSP: Now and Into the future Forum and CHSP & CDC making cur I racks into the futurt! 
·Worl<shop- 30 8c 31 July 2015 

Doslgn & Construction Forum- 27 October 2015 

~Community Forum HSecurlng Our Place in the Future" - ·11 November 2015 

· ~r,~ntlln~2015 Leadership S. Devctopme01 Forum- 19 November 2015 

~-

Clinical Forum- 18 February 2016 

20'16 ACS North!!rn R~?gions Conforencc- 17 & 18 March 2016 

, AAG & ACS Reglona\ Conference- 7 IL 8 Aprll2016 

2016 ACS State Confurente.>- 3 • 5 May 2016 355 

2016 ACS Seniors Housing & Retirement Living Symposium- 26 May 2016 

.' 2016 ACS State Awards lor E.xcaltcnce -21 June 2016 

. 2016 ACS Finance Symposium- 21 & 22 June 2016 

·Please note these numbers include Member registrants. Non Member registrants, SpeaKers, Sponsors, 
all Exhibitors and Staff. 

SEMINAR SCHEDULE 2015-16 

2, .. Augu51, 2016- Afford<~ble Housing Models for Retirement Village Ooerato~ 

2 September, 2015- No alcohol or drugs, please- this is a workplace Employees and 
drugs and alcohol 

-

5 Fcbruilry, 2016- Managing HI or Injured Workers 

22 February, 2016- User Charging & Admission Requirements Workshop and Interpreting 
the Medicare Statement Worl1shop 

16 March, 2016- User Charging & AdmlssJon Requirements Workshop and Interpreting the 
M~_dlcare Stntement Workshop 

'6APril. 2016- User Charging & Admission Requirements Workshop and lntorprcling the 
i'~t:dlcare Sta\f!ment Workshop ..... 
-. 
13 Apr11, ZD16- Workforce Planning 

24 ·May, 2016- The Rainbow Tick llGBTI Accreditation} 
-

1 June, 2016- Legal Update· Incident Management in Aged Care, dealing with comptni11ts 
ilnd claims, the Coroner and Mandatory Reporting 

6 June. 2016 ·Workers Compensation- Strategies and Practices for a Modern Aged Care 
Workplace: 

23 June, 2016- User Charging & Admisston Requirements Workshop and lntt'rprctlng tht' 
~e.dicare Statement Workshop 

TOTAL NUMBER OF PARTICIPANTS ACROSS ALL EVENTS 

PARTICIJ'ANTS 

- -
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2016 ACS STATE AWARDS 
FOR EXCELLENCE 
T h~ 2016 ACS State Awirds for Excellence Pre~nt,)tion di:rn~• was held on 

Tue~ay June 21 at Ooitone House, Hyde Park. The vnnn'ers were as follows: 

• Human Resource Manag•ment Award, Sponaer.d tiy Voice PrcJ•m 
PACE Aged Care 

• Trainee Award, Sponsored by Stewart Brown 
Jarred McClellan, McLean Care 

• Gareth Williamson SustafnebiUty Award 
Southem Cross Care NSW 1$< ACT 

• Volunteer Award, Sponsored by Hoi.Jnan Webb 
Beverley Mcintyre, inte.gratedlMng Australia 

• Employee Award, Sponsored by HESTA 
Jacqu1 Flood, Mclean Ca"' 

• Aboriginal & Torres Strait 'a-talKier CUltural Competencies 
lntegratedl1ving Austra lia 

• OrtaniRtlon Award Winners, Sponsored by Supertare Property Services 
NovaCare Community Serv1ces 
Adssi HomeLIVIng Australia 

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMEN1 A1NARD 
PACE AGED CARE 

ORGANISATION WINNERS 
NOVACARE COMMUNITY SERVICES ADSSI HOMELIVING AUSTRALIA 

TRAINEE WINNER 
JARRED McCLELLAN 

• t .t • • ,. . . ' / ·' . :e: . • //:1 ~IN 
:'· .~ ·~. n· . , 

~I .. JIII!I .. 
GARETH WILLIAMSON 
SUSTAINABILITY AWARD 
SOUTHERN CROSS CARE NSW IIi ACT 

VOLUNTEER 1MNNEI~ 
BEVERLEY MciNTYRE 

tMPLOYEE. WINNER 
JACQUI FLOOD 

ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT 
ISLANDER CULTURAL 
COMPETENCIES 
INTEGRATEDLIVING AUSTRALIA 
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ILLAWARRA 
REGIONAL COMMITTEE 

CHAIR: MARK SEWELL 

T he ACS lllawRrra/Shoalhaven Regronal group 
held 3 meetmgs 1n the past hm10c1at year -

August, November and Apnl 

Our reg1onal Worlo. tor the Dole Co-ordrnator attended 
the 18 August, 2015 meetmg and spoke about the 
new JOb actrve, work l:>r the dot. schemes. Good 
employment and placement rdeas were exchanged 
and members agreed to take plactmlents and rece1ve 
the support albwances It's very rmportanl aged 
care becomas & prrorrty for people re-entering the 
wori<force tf we ar& to meet our workforce goals 

At the November meet1ng Drs Eltza De Vet and 
Tamantha Stutchbury from thtl i.Jni'lt!rsity of 
Wollongong presented the1r "Enabhse· project where 
research feedback from older people tli bemg used to 
destgn and redestg!l new mobrlrly ar:is and appuances 
for pote:ntlal manufacture 

In Aprtl we had ACS Central Coast Reg1onat Chair Ph1t 
Walsh explarn how the new PACE Aged Care shared 
serv1ces model mtght work a.:ross the lllawarra. This 
strengthening strategy ts bemg cons1dered to enl'!ble 
ACS membeNJ to shant re!'ources such as trainmg, 
developmeot and admtnrstratron 

Frw membrrs from the regton formed a lobby 
group to oppor.e the recent ACFI cuts and celled 
for • moratorium on the changes unt1l ACFI was 
transpa,..ntly revurwed Wh1lst d1sappornt~ by th~ 
Government end Opposltton's response, rt was great 
to hava 5 org1ni.setrons worlung together for the 
common good of sralt numbers and the seMces for 
older people acrose the reg ron 

lfs a pleasure to work 1n such e cohesive ar.d 
cooperatrve place as the lllawarra 



ACS NEW ENGLAND 
REGIONAL COMMITTEE 

~---~·---------------
CHAIR: SUE THOMSON 

T hese are challenging t1me:; - morn opt1onS; mnre 
cho1ces, more ways to receive car.: and morn 

organ1sat1ons to pto111de it. Th.at's the story for u& now and 
for well .1nto the future It IS more 1mpo: ta11t than ever ~h<:t 

we understand our communities, tnsl.lre wo have robust 
plans for our 'uture and cont1nue to forge strong effective 
relat1;>nsh1ps With E>ach oth~r and our commul'llt!es. 
Dunng th1s past year, we ha''" done JUSt \ h<~t ·· usmg our 
meetings to support Q;;~ct- other, sh<Jre 1nformat1on <~nd to 
drive collaboration and 1 nnov;~ :icn '.'lflhw 0l.ir reQion. 

As a group, the New England Rog1onal Commlt1i!e has 
steadt.lstly held nur commitment to work With ACS to do 
whatever we can do to keep ageo care at the forof ront .of 
stal$ and national policy agenda>~, gMng -JOICe to oged 
care tn our regl(ln The New Cr.gland Aged Care Planning 
Reg1on has 4 state National ?arty MPs :me; almost every 
organisation involved in the New l:ngland Comm1tt111e made 
mdtvldual and group repr~sentat1on tt'l these memb.ers OP 

thf RN 24n issue - we were a force to be reckoned with -
and we sttll are. 

We are now lobbying our Federal membt!rs. of whom there 
are 2 in the New Eng!apcl Aged Care Plannm9 Reg1on on 
the ACFJ II.Si.JU vs well as meetmg w1th our state members 
ag;irn tp get thrm involved 111 dialogue about aged care with 
their Fedoral counterparts. 

MAC and RAS have sign11tcar:Hy •mpac.t~d on occupancy 
hwels for residential and. home care providers since July 
2015. 47 percent of the residential aged care beds Jn th1s 
regtor. are operated by community owned orgamsattoms 
and 42 percent of these orgamsatior'ls <~re between 1 1-30 
beds operat1ng m small rural towns of populations bt-twt.·en 
330 and 2000 

Many of these organisations are se.-mg a maj'lr reduction 
in occupancy - a phenomenon that many have never 
expeorhtoced s.nce their mcept10n. In a ttme wher. v1abil1ty 
and susteunability i!i high on the agenda ACS .md the New 
England RegJonal Committee are a major support for these 
organisations in terms of resources and strategy shanng. 

Providers of HCP and CHSP 1n lhts n>g1or. have also 
struggled w1th the impact of the MAC and RAS, as welt 
as the antiquated Medtcare payn:ar.t system - tenac1ty 
and pers1stence iS hetp1ng ACS gaH) gruund H; system 
rtr~provements th;lnks to the reQ!OI~·s activism 

On b~half of the Now Er,gland region, I would like to thank 
mana for her lendt?r!:.hrp a no hertE>aM ~c rthetrconside~ble 
dedication. energy and effort they give 1n t:elptng th1s reg1on 
navigate the year that was. Thanks to Autumn Lodge and 
RFBI Moonby Ho.use for theu· ge1;eros1ty if' hosting our 
m~trngs l !}ls year 

As o group we look forward to the orportunit1es that the 
New ACSA w1U orlng <'S we continue to explore better ways 
to deliver our&ervrcc:s that keep people 1n our region at the 
centro of our endt>avouts. 
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CENTRAL COAST 
REGIONAL COMMITTEE 

CHAIR: PHILLIP WALSH 
SECRETARY: SARAH-JOE WILLIAMS 

E ducat ron has been a focus throughout the year with the 
ACS utrlising three of our tac1Utres (Evergreen L1fe Care, 

Pemnsula V1llage and Blue Wave l.Jvingl to delrvereducabon 
programmes Thank you to these fac1llt1es for mak1ng It 

eas1er for our staff to ilttend education locally and thanks 
also to the ACS tor makmg tnis possrble 

It IS a shame th.at our recent ACA reforms now need 
tmkenng wrth rn such a big way wrth1n only 2 y.r.trs of their 
rncept1on So much for Ltving longer LMng BMter, these 
chang as to the ACFI can only h1nder the care models that~ 
de-liver but are any of our polJhcrans ltStemng 

W1th the rer.ent Federal Electrons we have had a change 
rn the makeup of our local potitrcrans. Although we spent 
considerable hfT'e last year rn educatrrtg the sittrng members 
and those m opposrb1>n on the need!. of the aged cart! sector, 
tt rs now essentrat lN& continue .w1th thrs 11.1tonng of our new 
Members of Parll'<ilment so they can be our vorce 1n Cal' berra 

With Mechco.re Local bemg revamped 1nto tht Pnmary 
Heal! hcare N~twori< 3 of our members now s1t on t~e Central 
Coast Aged Care Networi< with the rntent•on of 1nfluencrng 
local aged care dtrecllons· I thank these members for 
offerrng their trme to Jmprove the dtstnbutton of aged care 
seNtees through:>ut the dlstnct 

Th1s year also MJW lhl! launch ot Pace A ned Care l td on the 
Cer.tral Coast Frve members of ACS ha'lll combined to work 

as a buYing group whilst nl the same time sharing Vi'lriot~s 
sef\llces It rs encouragtng to see a group of laclhtles tllat are 
rev1ewmg their busmess model to protect their long tenn 
v1abr ltty whilst rata1nrng lhetrlrnk wtth thl:'ir Local commt:mty 
Thank you to ACS for their ass•stance throughout the 
formatiOn of th1s group. 

Our thanks must go to the management and staff of ACS 
Regularly our facrlities ask f~ asSistance and the supp1>rt ts 
greatly appreciated 'HaVIng ACS staff members attt'!nd our 
meet1rgs has also ~ated worthwhtle drscuss1on on many 
rndustry toprcs 



ACS HUNTER 
REGIONAL COMMITTEE 

CHAIR: KAREN BEST 
SECRETARY: DAVID KNIGHT 

2 015 16 has been a btg year for the Hunter 
- Branch. As ts to be expected thll' bulk 

of the efforts this yt>ar has been focused on res('on:.ling 
to changes fr~m the reforms, ospectally in our Hom(' 
Care Base and more rPcently advocatmg to repeal the 
proposed ACA cuts wsth many·members actively mvotvod 
in supportmg the ACS and oth.,,· campaigm• through so.:tsl 
med1a and open days 

We have continued to host several quest sp~takers mcluding 
Bernie Garrett from Foundatron LeadPrshlp,lyndeU Fogarty 
from pP.rformHR and Ruth Htltchinson from HunterNet 
Along. wtth these we have hild representation from /l,CS I R 
and Educahon representa1tves. 

Members have also b~n mvotved in provtdmg f•nanctat 
and case study feedback for the proposed ACFI c-hanges 
and also to support the ACS campa1gn reg,ud1ng the 24/7 
Registered Nurse tn Aged Care proposal 

Many of our members continue to s1t on Advts\ilry 
Committees, with the Hur.rer now bemg represc-nte::l 
on m~st ACS Advisory Committees. Th1s greatly iiSSists 
mombers lo remam up to date 011 a ran~}e or issues ar.cl 
acteons that are boing taken, ar.d our thilnks go to the 
dedicated l"lembers who make the tnp to Sy~t111y op a 
regular bas1s to help members remam mformed m the 
Hunter 

The Hunter gro1.1p hos madP. a conc&rtl!d effort to get out 
to different locations for meetings 1hls year with meetmgs 
held at Waratah, Bulahdelah and Elooragul. 

Attendanct! agam cont1nues to be patchy and seems to 
be reflective of workload commitments of members We 
initiated a survey to ~ddt as~; 1h1s and have moved our 
meetrngs around and invited speakers to attract new 
members tn l'lilsponse to this. 

Our Cha1r also cu11tributed to the cor:"'munecation forums 
· .=illd fenancial feeob,Jc!~ forums lor the Rurai <md rlern•He 
project in Sydney 

We con:ult,e to have iw~liemer:t from some I IACC pr.:M~rs 

and this has added 1o lhe discussion around the taote 

Over~ll it's peen another bu!'.y yo-.r and we look forward to 
the ct\oUenges ovl'!r lh~next 12 months 
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FAR NORTH COAST 
REGIONAL COMMITTEE 

CHAIR: P M CARTER 

I would like to open by thanl\mg lllana and the ACS 
staff who always provide good sound advice to us at a 

m~rnent s not1ce, on many occas1ons The Far Nor th Coast 
has had 2 meetings th1s year. the th1rd cancelleo due to 
lack of numbers foltowmg the March 2016 ACS Northern 
Reg1on Conference 1n Balllna 

Numbenl for the North Coast Reg1on have picked up. and 
the rea~ reason for the increase has been the attendanc~ CJf 

ACS statf bnngmg everybo~y up to date w1th matters that 
are occurnng 10 the mdusfry 

ACAR Fund Outcome 

Once agam some wmners and losers m the Aged Care 
Approvals Round wrth the last round for CDC's. Afler 18 
years of applications for f1rstly CAcP·s and then EACH. a 
fac1l1ty In the Far North Coast hnally snagged 32 CDC's 
m the last ACAR The reg1on has a_ rapidly growtng older 
populat1on so th1s 1s an 1mportant recogmtton of demand. 

Education 

Our members In thiS area are happy With the vanety of 
e<iucatlon prov1ded to us by ACS We in the Far North Coast 
are fortunate to have educatton courses provided to us 1n 

thts area by ACS However unfortunately some courses 
get cancelled due to lack of numbers wh;ch 1s a shamn. 
SuP.port for these education courses IS ~tal to save ·us 
travel and accommodation cost& to attend !ham m Sydney. 
Let'5 hope the attendance rate contmues to Increase 

Conference Far North Coast 

March 2016 saw the ACS Northern Ragion Conference 
held 1n Balhna It was great to sea a good attendance at 
thts conference, and all speakers salet tad and extnbltors 
!)roved popular With those who ett&nded. I d1d nnt t-ear 
from any neg•tiv&s at::out this cont~nce rather that it 
wes ·• great conferen~ ;.md top1cs were all ~levant. Full 
=olttpltm .. nts to lllana and her 111am tor such a ~uc:c8ssful 
ev$nt 

Government Cut• 

Once again the industry is being subjected to proposed cuts 
by tha Govt-mment The hgure to De cut from ACFI or rather 
CHC w1ll cost the mdustry between $1.2 billion to $2 btllion 
Th1s will put enormous pressure on the heatth fae~ht1es 10 

our reg1on, as 1t looks like a cost shtftmg axarc1se when we 
reduce fundrng to those with complex health care needs. 
The memb~rs of the reg1on -.trongly l obbied to have th1s 
unfair poUcy overturned. USing the election campa1gn as a 
chance to put pressui'Q on all cantttdates. 

RN U./7 

Sadly a negative that the LLLB Reform s has brought about. 
1s the qu•st by a unton and a pohttectl party and ~orne others 
to have RNs placed tn all aged care facrht1es around the 
c~ock 10 NSW Thts would have meant a cost around $150 
m1ll1on across NSW but even worse for us 10 th1s reg1on ts 
that It IS already a struggle to have RNs on 24/7 because 
we fmd 1t hard to get enough RN& There are several 
fac1llt1es (prev~ously hostels) 10 our reg1on that WQuld have 
to cons1der closure as they cannot get the RNs, even 1f they 
Ciln afford them 

This poorty thought out expans1on of RN coverage would 
ec~use loss of Jobs fur non RN staff, and If faciutres close 
tt will push older peopie out of the1r own town!i and into 
larger centres where less people wtll v1s1t them and tl)etr 
hves w1lt mean nDthmg. Th1s IS gotng to be an ongorng 
battle, and seems to be dnven by a desire for growth i n 
umon membersr.1p end polic:tef not reflecting the reality of 
llf'! In the country reg1ons 

In dosmg l w1sh to thank the Far North Coast Re;~1on~l 
Comm1ttee executive for lhelr contribution. members for 
the1r attendar:ca and lUana and her team agatn lor the1r 
voll.ed support Wo lo:>k forward lo b111ng part of ACSA. 



SYDNEY WEST METROPOLITAN 
NETWORK 

CHAIR: GERRY RENOUF 

T he Sydnt>y West Metropolitan Network continues to be 
an act1ve group with a number of pt>Ople from d1verse 

orgamsat1ons eether attendeng or rece.1vmg the r.ot<'' from 
the meetmgs. 

We corrtmue- to env1te guests to speak on topicalessues in 
order to make the attendance at mP-~llng o;, worthwlltle. to 
members. who have constant demands on the1r tfme 

Over the !:list 1Z n,onth<; we met 6 time!.. H~etings ar& held 
on the second Thursciay of every second month. 

The meetings were rotateo tv different sites however tt 
was four.d more prac;:hcable to hold them at one st1e wh1ch 
appears to sutt most rnemLler:o:. Our thanks to Barry Wtggws 
for making !aCflltles ava1labl~ at Our Lady of Consalati:Jn, 
Rooty H11l 

We have close to 22 members who atterd from t1me~to-­

t1me Average attendance dur1ng thf! last year was 10. 

Guests speakerJ at our meeUngs this year have be em 

• Stephen Hambndge - Resr.:urces for Prof1t 
Resources tor Profrt Js compnsed of experier.ced semor 
executiVes, wb speciaLISt' 1n hetpmg organisations 
manage the1r ind1rect costs 

• Ray Mi'lc - IT Compass 
fT Corr.pass 1s a company wh1C'h provtdes 1-:- basene!i!. 
solut1ons tor smatl and med1um organesations 111 all 
antas of Industry rang•ng from Government funded 
organtsattons to a larg,e supermarket cham 

• Steven WeultJes - Marketeng D1rector an:J F1.1under of 
CURA Digital Agency 
Steven pre..,ented on soc1al mea1a :md webs1tes 11f 
demonstrated how soc1al rned1a and thll! Internet are 
becom1ng 1ncreasmqly Important to our sector in the 
face of the cl;angmg emnronment :~1 Agl'c Care and the 
era of deregulation l}f the endtJ~tJy 

• Wayne Goltedge, Ch1ef Ex.~cutlve Officer, Impact Group 
and Steven B1n:t ProJect 01rector - Retlrel"lent and 
Aged Ca~. Impact Group 
Wayne and Steven outUned thescrv1ceswhich the Impact 
Group proVIdes in terms of a multt-disc1plmary servtce 
of Development Management. Project Management 
and Fire Saf~ty. They spectalise '"'aged care. rt>t1rement 
living and the qeneral resecfential market 

• J;met Glaser. ACS Learning Centre Manage• 
Janet provtd~:d detatls of forthcom1r.g educahonai 
events as ,·,ell as providmg an overall u~:Jate on 
act1v1tie!'> at ACS. 

• Lyndell Fog~rty. CEO. PerformHR 
Lyndell spoke on the topic of ·gel\inglhe nght person 
for the job~ . Sho covered tcpics ;;;ud' as - employlle 
engagel'l"ent ar.d staff appraisals 

Pnrt of each meeting IS lor o~en d1scuss1on wh1ch members 
lind mt'lst useful e]ipec1aUy given the ong-:Jing chnnges m 
aged care MaJor 1ssues discussed throughout the year 
en eluded.. 

• Rl'.s on duty 24 hours 1n all facelttJes 

• Res1dent AmbulancP. transport 

• DAPS & RADS 

• Home Care Packages ICDCs) 

• Prlltoral Care Network (PASCO PI 

• Changes to Workers Compensation 

Ot:nng the year we farewelled Teny Madden IBCACJ and 
Manan Achten (Abel Tasman). Both Terry and Manen have 
been yrei'lt supporter$ of our mutmgs and ACS 111 general 
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RIVER INA 
REGIONAL 
COMMITTEE 

CHAIR: WENDY ROCKS 

2 015-16 ha:> been and wrU contmue to be 
very busy for ell PI"''YYders, and 

the Rmnna rs no ~xcep~•on Thrs year we rt>solved to 
meE>t only 3 trrnes dunng the year, to mrmm1se travel 
and excessrve commitments other than what 1s already 
on the darty agenda for the R1venna rrovrders 

The 2 meetrngs we have had thus ~;" have proved to 
be of great benefit, wrth lllana Halltday proVIding ~very 
comprehensive update al both, and With atte-ndance 
numbers worthwhile In addttion to the regionel 
meelrngs, some of the regtonal mernbets have also 
atlenaed ACS education forum~ being held in Albury 
and Gnffith end reportealy have four.d lht5 convenience 
well worth the effort of traveL 

We contJnUQ to share arr1 inform!ilttou which comes our 
way Wlthn the reg10n, tnctudrng any mentoring ;"'cMCe 
that may be useful for n!'W managers to the mdustry or 
to the region, and the Cha1r cont1nues to dtst1'1bute and 
advertisP any ACS rnrtlatives betng held 111 the reg1on. 

The regmn and other ·regionBl members have 
communu:ated of late abo01t how and when we have 
supportL>d fhe c.arnpatgn against the proposed ACFI 
culr., and 11 hu !.leon encouragrng to hear others' 
maetrngs wtth MPs and menta in this regard 

It w11s good to see some mcm!.>ers of th<' RNenna 
Regtonal CommtttL>e at the ACS State Confer" J'lce anc 
the F£rt .tncn Symp'islum recently. 

The fmal meet1ng tor the ye!ar WJU be tn November o~ 
Frtday November 4 at Berng;:m Aged Care. 

CENTRAL WEST 
REG IONAL 
COMMITTEE 

CHAI R: RAYMOND HARRIS 

In 2:114 we resolved due to distance, to alternate our 
meetings to more central venues of Bathurst and Orange 

1n antrcrpatron that attendances woutd rmprove. 

Tile Orange venue was not a success but also nottng 
attendances remarned stable at Bathurst and we resolved 
that Cheriton at Bathurst was more conven1enr for our 
attendees of mamly stand-alone fac1hhes, although 11 
appears th~t Orange has proven successful and accesslble 
for ACS Traaning anrl Courses 

There has baen no change In the Last 3 ycors of attendances 
agatn mamly attended by stand-alone faCJhhes All efforts 
to make the ver.Je more access1b~' end focusmg on more 
lnterestmg and vaned content of meetmgs r=ts.been to no 
avarl and we are completely tgnored by larger factlJtles 1n 
our region apart from attendances from RFBI and UPA. 

Notwlthstandmg thrs, the rnformation sharrng and ACS· 
mvolvemant has been exceptionally valuable for stand­
alone residentral care espedatly the comprehension of the 
Impact of budget cuts to n.rral and remote fac1l1t1es for tile 
fiscal paned 2016/2017 

In dl5"cusston and notrng our own vulnerabrhlles and the 
dtfftculbes of marntammg the status quo and the reallsat1on 
that these cuts could be catastrophK to our Vlebtllty. we 
have ensured tftat through this communique to be proactive 
and emulatmg proven expenences of our' colleagues and 
have taken on board var1ous methodolog1es to ensure our 
VIabilitieS. 

Re1terat1ng my previous consternation that the larger 
orgarusat1ons have very lrttle statf rnvolvement w1tl' the ACS 
regtonal structure m the Central West ar.d as prev~austy 
reported, we have made numerous attempts by contacting 
key personnel, updattng marbng lists, and personal phone 
calls to no avatl, rt appears to me that there ls a cursory 
examtnahoo of the benefits of attendmg our meetmgs. 

Although small rn numbers ln my oprn1on our meetings 
are committed, product•ve, e.jucat1onal and a means of 
reducmg the chasm of tntetlec.luallsolC~tlon 



ORANA & FAR WEST 
REGIONAL COMMITTEE 

CHAIR: CATH BUSH 
SECRETARY: LEANNE REDFERN 

W e have held 4 meetmgs In I hi.! p!iiSI year whtch have 
beer reasonably well attended cfesptte the drstances 

OlUr members hsve to travel. Our network remair.s very 
&trong ~nd supporttv! of each other and values the 
meettngs 

These meetmgs haw proVIded an excellent forum to share 
1deas wh1ch I$; eJCtremety t>elpfut wrth the ever chang1ng 
Aged Cdre lnduslry. Our guest speakers have been 
tnformattve and educational for our members. Some of the 
1ssues dtscussed over the past 12 months have rncluded 

• ACSA transrhon 

• Registered Nurses 71./7 

• ACFI flmdmg changes and the tmpact or- f<tdht~ mcome 

• Dcvelop1n~ busmess modets base!! on lutuf't' changes 

• Home Care Peck<1gcs under CDC 

• Stgmftcant refurbishment 

• Entemrlse Agreements 

• Accredttatron 

• My Agqd Care 

In Apnl we were fortunate to host the MG & ACS 2 day 
Regtonal Conference In Oubbo. It was an ~xcelhmt 

conference and members who took the opportunity to 
attend the co~ferv.ace found the 2 day:. to De both villuable 

and enJOJBble 

The Crar.a & F:~r West Regronal Commlttre member.!> 
remam nosrlu~nt and focused on provulrng the htg~est 
quality rfln: and accommodation fer resroents and servr:::es 
With thi! support ol ei'lcl- oth•r whilst add.-rssing the 
challenges or change wllntn the ,,,d.r~try 

On beha'f of the Orana & Fer Wef.t Reg1onal Commr\t.:::o, 
I WISh to thank lUana and her 5taff for the support they grwe 
to tht5 M!gton, which is appre.: iatc::l by all 
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DIRECTORS' OPERATING REPORT 

AS AT 30 JUNE 2016 

Aged & Community Servrces NSW & ACT IS regrstered as a company hm1ted by guarantee and not having a share caprtal 
under the prov1s1ons of the Australian Chan'tfes and Not-tor-profits Commrssion Act 2012. The Directors present the 
frnanc1al report of Aged & Community Serv1ces NSW & ACT for the year ended 30 June 2016 and report as follows; 

NAMES OF DIRECTORS 
The names of and other information on the Directors m offrt"e durmg or smce the end of the year are as follows The 
Dtrectors were 1n office for this ent1re period un~ess otherwise stated. 

Ms Vivienne Allanson (Prestdent) 

Mr Paul Sadler 
Mr Paul McMahon {appointed October 2015) 

Mr P'Mip Annstrong (resigned october 2015) 
Mr Rob Freeman 
Mr David Goodhew 
Ms Sue Thomson (appomted October 2015} 

Ms lenni Allan (appointed February 2016) 
Mr Ross Low 
Mr Davrd Maher 
Mr Raad Richards 
Mr Mark Warw1ck Sewell 
Mr Alexander Shaw 
Mr Stephen Teulan 
Mr Ron Thompson 
Mr Stephen Walkerden (resigned October 2015) 

Ms Alexandra Zammit 
Ms Helen Wilson (resigned December 2015} 

The Directors were m office for the whole of the financial year unless otherwise stated. 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 
ACS 1s a regrstered rndustnal organisation of employers who are aged and communrty care providers in the non-profit, 
charitable sector As a representative organlsatlon ACS represents members' views politically at a Commonwealth and 
State level, either directly In ItS own nght or Indirectly via Aged and Community Services Australia (ACSA). 

There has been no slgmflcant change In the nature of the company's prmcipal activities from the previous year 

OPERAllNG RESULT 
The operating resuft of the company for the flnanclal year was an operating deficit of $69,920 (2015: surplus $17,091). 

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN STATE OF AFFAIRS 
There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the company during the financial year, 
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DIRECTORS' OPERATING REPORT 

AS AT 30 JUNE 2016 

MI!ETINGS Of DIRECTORS 
The number of meetln&J each Director was ehglble to ttttnd and actually llttended durtna the financial year Is 
summarised as folfows: 

!bini 
Ms ~IIMt AJIIIIIOfl 

MrPIUIW!er 
Mr Aleqnder Shaw 
Mr Dtvid Good hew 
Mr Otllld Mlher 
Mr Mert S.Wtll 
Mr PhBTp Armstronl 
Mr Raid JUchlm 
MrRob~ln 

cmtER I.ORMAnON 

_.,.. 
7 
7 
7 
7 
7 
7 
2 
7 
7 

7 
3 

2 

6 

-- ....,.. Atbnded 
MrAosLow 7 
Mr Stephen Wlllclirden 2 
Mr $taw Teul111 7 6 
Ms Alelllndrt Zlmmlt 7 
Mrs Helen Wl!Mn 7 4 
MsJannl Allin 4 4 
Ms Sue Thomson 5 3 
Mr Pill! McMthon s 3 
Mr RDn Thompeon 7 s 

In compliance with 5254(2) of the Falf Worlc (R~Istered Organisatforrs) Art 2009 end Regulation 1S9 of the Folr Wort 
(Reg~d OrgonlstltkJns) Regulations 2009. the Qrecton provide the followlns addltlal')lllnformatlon: 

1. The company ilt the eruJ of the fi!Widal year had 291 members. 

2. The company hid 3S empJovH$ atttle end oftt\e flnanc:lal yew. 

3 The Superannuation affairs of the c:omp.any a~ t:ol'lducted by Independent fund maneprs on behalf of the 
employees. No Dlrec:tor, officer or membllr of the compeny has any Involvement wfth the company's 
5uperannu8tlon. Employees choote tllelr own superllftnuatton fund. 

4. Members heve the n&ht to res11n from the company It_, time by fumishl"' written notice. This rlaht meens the 
company' ~rules meat the requlrementJ af 5114 of the - · •• · · ·- • ,.. .. ,.- ag, 

. /~/ ~ 

~"·, 

\ \ 
• t 

'J 
Vivienne AJianJOn 
Presidi!nt 

5 September l016 

/~-~ ;VlV 
~~·••oo•w""''/' I 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 30 JUNE 2016 

2016 2015 
Note $ $ 

ASSETS 
Current assets 

Cash and cash eqUivalents 6 9,724,669 4,0&2,914 
Trade and other ret:elvables 7 977,433 1,421,359 

TotG{ current assets 10,702.102 5,504,273 

Non-current assets 

Property, plant and equ1pment ·8 388,437 224,013 

Total non-current assets 388,437 224,013 

TOTAL ASSETS 11,090,539 5,728,286 

LIABIUTIES 
Current liabilities 

Trade and other payables 9 7,807,610 2,384,591 
Prov1s1ons 10 147,902 122,665 

Total current ltabilfttes 7,955,512 2,507,256 

Non-current liabilities 

Provrslons 10 23,272 39,355 
Total non-current ftabrlrt~es 23,272 39,355 

TOTAL UABILITIES 7,978,784 2,546,611 

NET ASSETS 3,111,755 3,181,675 

EQUITY 
Accumulated funds 3,111,755 3,181,675 

TOTAL EQUITY 3,111,755 3,181,675 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS & 
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 

2016 2015 
Note $ $ 

Revenue 4 5,489,110 4,843,386 
Other Income 4 6,764 13,742 

5,495,874 4,857,128 
Expenses 

Staff costs (2,117,233) (2,092,061) 
AdminiStration expenses (877,407) {705,316) 
Consultancy (56,696) (33,255) 

Research and development (20,000) 

Deprec1atton and amort1sat1on 5 (117,9-88) (115,903) 

Events (434,966) (395,230) 

Learning Centre expenses (208,388) (211,282) 

Office accommodatton (281,852) (273,380) 

Project expenses (1,132,157) (710,595) 
Subscriptions (319,107) (303,015) 

(5,565,794) (4,840,037) 

Surplus (deficit) before Income tax (69,9:!0) 17,091 

Income tax expense 

Surplus (deficit) for the year (69,920) 17,091 

Other comprehensive Income for the year 

Total comprehensive Income (deficit) for the year (69,9201 17,091 

The accompanymg notes form part of these financtal stat~ments 



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 

Accumulated 

Funds Total 

$ $ 

Balance at 1 July 2014 3,164,584 3,164,584 

Comprehensive Income 

Surplus for the year 17,091 17,091 
Other comprehensive mcome 

Total comprehensive income for the year 17,091 17,091 

Balance at 30 June 2015 3,181,675 3,181,675 

Balance at 1 July 2015 3,181,675 3,U1,675 

Comprehensive Income 

Surplus (def1crt) for the year (69,920) {69,920) 
Other comprehensive mcome 

Total comprehensive Income (defldt) for the year (69,920) (69,920) 

Balance at 30 June 2016 3,111,755 3,111,755 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial s1atements 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 

2016 2015 
Note $ $ 

cash flows from operating actMtles 
Rece1pts from customers and government 12,228,482 4,689,336 
Payments to suppliers and employees (6,432,532) (5,165,133) 
Interest received 121,453 123,298 

Net cash flows from operatmg actiVIttes 12 5,917,403 (352,499) 

cash flows from Investing actlVItles 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equ1pment 32,614 25,050 
Purchase of property, plant and equ1pment (308,262) (65,313) 

Net cosh flows from mvestmg activities (275,648) (40,2&3) 

Net increase (decrease) m cash and cash equtvalents 5,641,755 (392,762) 

cash and cash equtvalents at the beginning of th·e fmancial year 4,082,914 4,475,676 

cash and cash equivalents at the end of the f tnancial year 6 91724 ,669 ~082,914 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 

Note 1 · Reporting entrtv 

The f tnanoal report ts for the Aged & Communrty Serv1ces NSW & ACT as an indiVtdual entity and domtctled tn Austraha 
The company IS regtstered as a company llmrted by guarantee and nat haVIng share capttal under the provtslons of the 
Austrolton CharitieS and Not-for-profits Cammtsston Act 2012 

The f inancial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 5 September 2016 

Note Z • Bpsls of preParation 

Statement of comp/Jance 
These fmanctal statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared m accordance wtth 
Australian Accountmg Standards and Interpretations of the Australian Accountlng Standards Board, the 
reqwements of the Austroltan Chartttes and Not-for-profits CommissiOn Regulation 2013 and Fair Work (Regtstered 
Orgomsattons) Act 2009 ln accordance Wlth the reporttng requirements of the Fatr Work (Regtstered Orgomsottons) 
Act 2009, the company ts deemed to be a Tter 1 entrty apply1ng full iFRS recognttlon, measurement and disclosure. 

The company IS a not-for-prafrt entity for financtal reportmg purposes under Australian Accounting Standards Matenal 
accountlt'\8 policres adopted 10 the preparatiOn of these floanaal statements are presented below and have been 
consiStently applied unless stated otherWise. 

Australian Acrountmg Standards set out accountmg pohcies that the MSB has ronduded would result 1n fmanoal 
statements t ontammg relevant and reliable mformat1on about transactiOn~ events and condtt tons, 

Basis of measure~ 
The ftnanoal statements, except for the cash flow mformat1on, have been prepared on an accruals basts and are 
based on htstoncal costs, modtfted, where applicable, by the measurement at fa1r value of selected non-current 
assets, f tnanctal assets and flnanoa! llabrhttes 

Comparatives 
Where requ1red by Accounting Standards comparative hgures have been adJusted to contorm to changes •n 
presentation for the current fmanc1al year Where the company has retrospecttvely applied an accounting policy, made 
a retrospectlve restatement or reclasstfled Items m 1ts f1nanc1al statements, an add1t 1onal statement of ftnanoal pos1t1on 
as at the begtnnmg of the earliest comparative penod Will be diSclosed 

Ctltko/ accounting estimates ond Judgements 
The company evaluates estimates and JUdgments Incorporated tnto the frnanc1al statements based on hl stoncal 
knowledge and best available current InformatiOn. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future events and 
are based on current trends and economic data, obtatned both externally and within the company 

Key estimates 
lmpalfment 
The company assesses impairment at the end of each reportmg period by evaluation of conditions and events 
speof1c to the Company that may be lndtcatrve of 1mpa1rment trll!8ers Recoverable amounts of relevant assets are 
reassessed ustng value-m-use calculations which rncorporate various kev assumptions. 

Est1mat10n of us~jul ltves of assets 
The est1mat1on of the useful hves of assets has been based on htstoncal expertence as well as manufacturers' 
warranttes (for plant and equtpment) and turnover pohctes (for motor vehtcles) In addition, the cond1t1on of the 
assets ts assessed at least once per year and consrdered against the rematnlng useful hfe Adjustments to useful 
hves are made when constdered necessary. 

New and revised standards that are effective for these flnanr:lal statements 
A number of new and revised standards are effective for annual pertods beginning on or after 1 July 2015, however 
none are expected to slgntflcantly Impact the Association's financ1al statements 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 

Note 3 -Significant accounting Rolkles 

The principal accounting pohdes adopted In the preparation of the financ1al report are set out below These 
pohctes have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated 

Income Tax 
The company 1s exempt from mcome tax under 01v1sion 50 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 

Goods and Services Tax (GST) 
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST 1ncurred 
IS not recoverable from the Australian Taxat1on Office {ATO) 

Receivables and payables are stated mclusiv~ of the amount of GST rece1vable or payable The net amount of GST 
recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO ls included with other receivables or payables m the statement of 
financ1al pos1t1on 

Cash flows are presented on a gross bas1s. The GST components of cash flows arising from 1nvestmg or fmanctng 
actiVIties whtch are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are presented as operating cash flows included l n 
receipts from customers or payments to suppliers 

Re11enue recognition 
Revenue Is measured at tne fair value of the cons1derat 1on received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue 
are net of returns, trade allowances and duties and taxes mcluding goods and services tax (GST). Revenue IS 

recogmsed for the maJor busmess actiVIties as follows· 

Member's subscriptions 
The subscription fee paid by members of the company entit les member organisations to receiVe serv1ces at pnces 
lower than those charged to non~members and access to a vanety of tree serv1ces and pubhcatlons. Income f rom 
membership fees is recogmsed on a basis that reflects the t1mmg, nature and value of the benefits provided 

Grants (fncludmg government grants) and donations 
Income arJSmg from the contribution of an asset (including cash) IS recognised when the follow.ng condittons have 
been sat1sf1ed 

(a) the company obtams control of the contnbution or the right to receive the contnbut1on; 
(b) 1t is probable that the economic benef1ts compmmg the contribution will flow to the company, and 
(c) the amount of the contribution can be measured reliably at the fair value of the cons1detat1on received 

Sale of goods and services 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised upon the delivery of goods to customers. Revenue from the 
rendering of a serv1ce Is recqgnised upon the deliVery of the serv1ce to the customer. 

Interest 
Revenue from Interest ls recogmsed on an accruals basis 

Cash and cash equfvt~lents 
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, depostts nei<J at call with fmanc1almst1tutlons, other short-term, 
highly hquld mvestments with original maturit1es of twelve months or less that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of c-ash and wh1ch are subject to an 1ns1gruf1cant nsk of changes m value and bank overdrafts. 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 

Note 3- S!mlflcant aceountlnJ poDcles (continued) 

Trade recelvabl~ 
For all sources of recurrent Income, t rade receivables are recogmsed mit1ally at fair value and subsequently 
measured at amort1sed cost, less a prov1s1on for 1mpa1rment. Collectablll ty of trade receiVables 1s rev1ewed on an 
ongomg basis Debts which are known to be uncollectrble are w rrtten off. A proVIsion for 1mpa1rment 1s established 
when there IS obJeCtive ev1dence that tile company w11l not be able to collect al l amounts due according to the 
onglnal terms of receivables The amount of the prov1s1on IS the d1ffrtre·nce between the asset's carrvm& amount 
and t he present value of estimated fu ture cash flows, discounted at the effective Interest rate The amount of the 
prov1s1on Is recognised In the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive mcome. 

Property, plant and equipment 
Recognrt1on and measurement 

Each class of property, plant and 'equipment ts c~med at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated depreoabon 
and 1mpa1rment losses. Cost Includes expenditure that Is ~rectly attnbutable to the acqul.slt1on of the asset. 
Purchased software that 1s mtesral to the functionality of the related equ1pment Is capitalised as part of that 
equipment Ga1ns and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds wtth carry1ng amount These are 
Included tn the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive Income 

Subsequent costs 
Subsequent costs are Included 111 the asset's carry1ng amount or recognised as a separate asset, as approprJate, 
only when It 1s probable that future economtc benefitS associated wrth the ttem w1ll flow to the company and t he 
cost of the rtem can be measured reliably All other repairs and mamtenanc:2 are charged to the statement of 
comprehensive mcome dur101 the f1nanc1al peflod tn wh1ch they are mcurted 

Depreaateon 
The depr eciable amount of all property, plant and equipment and caprtallsed lease assets IS deprecated on a stralflht 
hne basis over the asset's useful life to the company commendng from the t1me the asset IS held ready for use. 
Leasehold Improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated 
useful lives of the improvements 

The deprec1at1on effectJVe hfe used for each class of depreciable assets 1s 

Motor vehicles 
Leasehold Improvements 
Office equipment, furmture and flttmgs 
Computer equipment 

5 years 
5 years 
5 years 
3 years 

The assets' res1duaJ values and useful lives are rev~ewed, and adj usted 1f appropnate, at the end of each reportmg 
penod. An asset's carrying amount 1s wntten down ~mmed1ately to Its recoverable amount tf the asset's carrymg 
amount IS greater than Its estimated recoverable amount. 

Impairment •I asseu 
At each reporting date, the company reviews the canying costs of Its tanalble and mtangtble assets to determme 
whether there 1s any 1ndicat1on that those assets have been Impaired. If such an 1ndtcat1on exists, the recoverable 
amount of the asset, be1ng the higher of the assets fa1r value less the costs to sell the value-In-use, IS compared to the 
asset's carry1ng value Any excess of the asset's carrymg value over Its recoverable amount 1s expensed to the Income 
statement Where It Is not possible to esttmate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Company estimates 
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs 

lmpa~rment losses are reversed when there IS an ind1cat1on t hat the Impairment loss may no longer ex1st and there 
has been a change 1n the est1mate used to determme the recoverable amount 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 

Note 3 • Slenlflcant accounting policies (continued) 

Finam:lallnstruments 
The company's financial Instruments consist only of depo-sits with banks, accounts receivable and accounts payable 

lnlt tal recognition and measurement 
F1nanc1al assets and flllanc1al hablht1es are recogmsed when the company becomes a party to the contractual 
prov1s1ons to the mstrument. For financia l assets this IS equivalent to the date that the company comm1ts 1tself to 
e1ther purchase or sell the asset. 

Financ1al instruments are tnlt1ally measured at fair value plus transactions costs except where the Instrument 1s 
classified uat fair value through profit or loss" in which case transaction costs are expensed to proftt or loss 
1mmed1ately 

Classification and subs_eguent measureni.ent 
Financilll instruments are subsequently measured at either fatr value, amortised cost using the effect1ve mterest 
rate method or cost. Fair value repres-ents the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled, 
between knowledgeable, Willing parties. Where available, quoted prices m an active market are used to determine 
fair value. In other circumstances, valuation techniques are adopted. 

Amortised cost 1s calculated as the amount at whrch the frnanclal asset or financial liability •s measured at imt1al 
recogn1t1on less pnncrpal repayments and any reduction for Impairment, and adjusted for any cumulative 
amortisation of the difference between that 101t1al amount and the maturity amount calculated usmg the effective 
mterest method. 

The effective mterest method is used to allocate Interest mcome or Interest expense over the relevant penod and 1s 
eqUivalent to the rate that exactly discounts esttmated future cash payments or rec.eipts (includmg fees, 
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life (or when this cannot be rehably 
predicted, the contractual term) of the financial 1nstrument to the net cartylng amount of the financial asset or 
financiaJ hab1hty. Revisions to expected future net cash flows will necessitate an adjustment to the carrytng val-ue 
with a consequential recognition of an income or expense tn prof1t or loss 

Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with f1xed or determmable payments that are not quoted 
1n an active market They anse when the company provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no 
intention of selling the receivable. They are included m receivables in current assets in the statement of fmanc1al 
position, except for those w ith maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reportrng penod which are 
classified as non-current assets. 

Financial llab1llt1es 
Non-denvat1ve fmancial habiht1es (exdudmg fmanc1al gu;~rantees} are subsequently measured at amortised cost 

Impairment 
At the end of each reportmg per1od, the company assesses whether there Is ObJective ev1dence that a financtal 
asset has been Impaired. A fmancla1 asset o-r a group of financial assets w ill be deemed to be 1mpa1red 1f, and only 
1f, there IS objective ev1dence of 1mpa1rment as a result of t he occurrence of one or more events (a "loss event"}, 
wh1ch has an 1mpact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset(s). 

In the case of available-for-sale financial assets, a slgnlficant or prolonged decline in the market value of the 
instrument is considered a loss event Impairment losses are recogmsed in profit or loss Immediately. Also, any 
cumulative decline In fair value previously recognised in other comprehensive mcome Is reclassified into profit or 
loss at t his point 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 

Note 3 · Significant accountin& policies (contlnu.edl 

Rnonclollnstruments (continued} 

In the case of financial assets earned at amorttsed cost, loss events may Include: mdir..atlons that the debtors, or a 
group of debtors, iil re experlenana stantflcant fin<~nctal difficulty, default or delinquency In Interest or pnnctpal 
payments, mdtcations that they will enter mto bankruptcy or other fmanclal reorganJsatton; and changes tn arrears 
or economtc cond'itmns that correlate with defaults. 

For fmancial assets earned at amorttsed cost {tncludlng loans and receivables), a separate allowance ac.count ts 
used to reduce the carrying amount of fmanctal assets Impaired by credtt losses After havtng undertaken all 
posstble measures of recovery, tf the management establishes that the carrytng amount c.annot be recovered by 
any means, lit that pomt the wntten-off amounts are charged to the allowance account or the carrymg amount of 
1mpa1red financtal assets ts reduced dtrectfy tf no tmpatrment amount was prevtousfy recoanlsed tn the allowance 
accounts 

When the t erms of financial assets that would otherwise have been past due or tmpatred have been renegotiated, 
the company recogmses the lmpatrment for such fmancial ass-~ts by tilktng mto account the ongmal terms as tf the 
terms have not been renegotiated so that the foss events that hav~ occurred are duly constdered. 

Derecognitron 
J:tM IIC•al assets are dereoogmsed where the contractual rtghts to recetpt of cash flows exptre or the asset 1s 
transferred to another party whereby the company no longer has any stanlftcant continumg mvolvement m the 
rtsks and benef tts assooated wtth the asset. Ftnandal ltabthttes are derecogntsed where the related obhgatlons are 
ett her dtscharged, cancelled or exptre The dtfference between the carrying value of the fmanc1al Uabflrty 
extmgutshed or transferred to another party and the fatr value of constderat1on patd, mcludlng the transfer of non­
cash assets or habtllttes assumed, Is recogmsed m profit or foss. 

Trad• and other PIIYOble.s 
Trade and other payables represent the llabthty outstanding at the end of the reporting pertod for goods and 
services received by the company during the reporting period, which remal:n unpa1d The balance Is recognised as a 
current habtlity with the amounts normally patd within 30 days of recognttlon of the llabrhty The carrymg amount 
of trade and other payables IS deemed to reflect fatr value 

lncotM received In adwJnce 
Income, other than government contract income, th~t is receiVed before the service to which the payment relates 
has been provided ts recorded as a habthty until such time as the serVtce has been provtded, at which time It ts 
recogntsed m the statement of proftt or loss and other comprehensiVe mcome. 

Unexpended grants 
The 'Xlmpany receives arant montes to fund proJeqs etther fOf contracted perrods of ttme or for speaftc projects 
trrespectNe of the pert ad of ttme requtred to complete these proJects It IS the pohcy of the company to treat grant 
montes as revenue m advance In the statement of finanoal postt ton where the company Is contractua:ly obhsed to 
prov1de the servtces m a .:oubsequent fmanc1af pertod to when the grant ts receaved or m t he case of spec1ftc project 
grants where the proJect has not been completed 

Employee Mnefits 
ProVlston IS made for the company' s liability for employee benefits anstng from sefV!ces rendered by employees to 
the end of the reportmg penod. Employee benefits that are expected to be settled within one year have been 
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability IS settled. Employee beneftts payable later than 
one year have been measured at the present value of the esttmated future cash outflows to be made for those 
benefits. In determining t he liability, consideration IS g1ven to employee wage increases and the probabtllty that the 
elrlployee may not satisfy vestmg requirements. Those cash outflows are dtscounted using market yields on high 
quality corporate bonds wtth terms to maturtty t hat match the expected ttmmg of cash flows. 
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Note 3 - Significant accounting policies (continued! 

Provisions 
PrOVISions are recogmsed when the company has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for 
wh1ch It IS probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured. 
Prov1s1ons recogmsed represent the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obhgat1on at the end of the 
reportmg perrod 

Fair vafue of assets and liabilities 
The company measures some of Its assets and ltabHittes at fa1r value on either a recurnng or non-recurrmg basls. 
dependmg on the requirements of the applicable Accounting Standard. Fair value is the priCe the company would 
rece1ve to sell an asset or would have to pay to transfer a hablhty 1n an orderly {ie unforced) transaction between 
Independent, knowledgeable and Willing market participants at the measurement date 

As fatr value IS a market-based measure, the closest eqUNalent observable market pricing mformat1on IS used to 
determme fa1r value AdJustments to market values may be made haVIng regard to the charactenst1cs of the 
spec1ftc asset or habJIJty The fa~r values of a5sets and llabtlltJes that are not traded m an act1ve market are 
determined usmg one or more valuat1on techmques. These valuation t echmques max1m1se, to the extent possrble, 
the us-e of observable market data 

To the extent possible, market Information is extracted from e1ther the prlncrpal market for the asset or liability (ie 
the market with the greatest volume and level of actiVity for the asset or liabinty) or, In the absence of such a 
market, the most advantageous market available to the company at the end of the reporting period (ie the market 
that maximises the receipts f rom the sale of the asset or mi nlm1ses the payments made to transfer the liability, 
after taktng 1nto account transactJon costs and transport costs) 

For non-financial assets, the fa1r value measurement also takes Into account a market participant's ability to use the 
asset m Jts h1ghest and best use or to sell It to another market partiCipant that would use the asset ln It s highest and 
best use. 

The fa1r value of liabilities and the company's own equ1ty instruments {excluding those related to share-based 
payment arrangements} may be valued, where there Is no observable market price m relation to the transfer of 
such financial Instruments, by reference to observable market mformat1on where such Instruments are held as 
assets. Where th1s Informat ion IS not available, other valuat1on techniques are adopted and, where Significant, are 
detailed In the respective note to the ftnancial statements 



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 

Note 4 - Revenue and other Income 

Revenue 
Members subscnptions 
Courses Income 
Events tncome 
Projects mcome 
Consultancy income 
Industrial services Income 
Other operatmg revenue 

Other revenue 
Interest mcome 

Total revenue 

Other Income 
Net gain on the disposal of propertY, plant and equipment 

Total other mcome 

Total revenue and other mcome 

NoteS - Expenses 

Deprectatton and amort1sat1on 
Leasehold Improvements 
Plant and equipment 
Motor vehicles 

Total depreciation and amortisation 

Provision for impatrment- doubtful debts 
Rental expenses relatmg to operating leases 

.Remuneration of Auditors (StewortBrown, Chartered Accountants} 
Audit of the financtal statements 
Busmess consultancv and advtsory serv1ces 

Note 6 • Cash and cash egytvalents 

Cash at bank and on hand 
Short term bank depos:ts 

Total cash and cash equ1valents 

Certain balances w1thm cash and cash equivalents are subject to mterest rate nsk as they 
earn mterest mcome at vanable rates of interest The company's exposure to mterest rate 
nsk on financial assets and hab1ht1es 1s disclosed In note 16. 

2016 2015 
$ $ 

2,155,355 2,021,997 
474,431 531,345 

748,248 806,184 

1,497,344 844,831 

395,426 429,408 

50,235 60,214 

46,618 22,793 

5,367,657 4,716,772 

121,453 126,614 

121,453 126,614 

5,489,110 4,843,386 

6,764 13,742 

6,764 13,742 

5,495,874 4,857,128 

15,345 10,515 
59,081 65,332 

43,562 40,056 
117,988 115,903 

(3,000) 
229,588 216,667 

12,200 11,700 
90,043 120,286 

102,243 131,986 

6,754,393 1,154,837 

2,970,276 2,928,077 

9t7241669 4,0821914 
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Note 7-Trade aDd other r~ivabJes 

Current 

Trade receivables 

Provls1on for 1mpa1rment 

Other recewables 

Prepayments 

Total current trade and other recervables 

Provision for impairment 

Balance at the begmning of the flnanctal year 

Increase (decrease) in prowlon 
Balance at the end of the f~nancial year 

(a) Trade recelvobles and Impairment 

Current trade recetvables are generally 30 day terms. These receivables are assessed for 

recoverabfltty and a prov1s1on for lmpatrment IS recogmsed when there 1s objecttve 

evtdence that an md1vidual trade receiVable ls 1mpatred 

(b) Credit risk 
The company's exposure to credrt rtSk 1s disclosed 1n note 16 

Note 8- Property. plant and equipment 

Leasehold Furniture and 
Improvements Equipment 

$ $ 
At 30 June 2015 
Cost 120,036 466,914 
Accumulated depreciatton (104,691) (371,766) 

Net carrymg amount 15,345 95,148 

Movem~nts in carrying amounts 

Opentng net carrying amount 15,345 95,148 
Addlttons 164,040 60,174 
Disposals 

Deprectatton charge for the year (15,345) (59,081) 
Closmg net carrytng amount 164,040 96,241 

At 30 June 2016 
Cost 284,076 527,088 
Accumulated depreciation i120,036) (430,847) 

Net carrying amount 164,040 96,241 

2016 
$ 

691,814 

691,814 
105,886 
179,733 
977,433 

3,000 

{3,000) 

Motor Vehicles 

$ 

198,322 
(84,802) 

113,520 

113,520 
84,048 

(25,850) 
(43,562) 
U-8,156 

220,631 
(92,475) 

128,156 

2015 
$ 

1,038,967 
(3,000) 

1.035,967 
191,512 
193,880 

1,421,359 

3,000 

3~000 

Total 

$ 

785,272 
(561,259) 
224,013 

224,013 
308,262 
(25,850) 

{117,988) 
383,437 

1,031,795 
(643,358) 
388!437 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 

Note 9- Trad.e and other pay;~bles 

CUrrent 

Trade payables 

Subscnpt lons received m advance 

ProJect funding rece1ved m advance 
Semmars mcome rece1ved 1n advance 

L1 abi11t1es to employees 

Other payables 

Total current trade and other payabfes 

Uquidlty risk 
The company's exposure to hqu1d1ty risk related to trade and other payables 1s disclosed m 

note 16. 

Note 10- Provisions 

Q.!J:mm 
Employee entitlements- long serv1ce leave 

Total current provisions 

Non-current 

Employee entitlements - long serv1te leave 

Total non-current provtstons 

Note 11 - Kev management personnel 

The aggregate amount of compensation was pa1d to key persont~el m respect to the 

following catesones of remuneration 

Short tenn employee be.nefits 

Post-employment benefits 

Other long-term benefits 

Note 12 • Cash f low information 

(a) Reconciliation of net pro/It ((jter tax to net CQsh flows from operations 

Surplus (deficit) after mcome tax 

Adjustments for 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Prov1s1on of tmpa1rment 

Net loss (gam) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 

Changes in assets and liabtliti~s 

(Increase) decrease In trade and other receivables 

(Increase) decrease in prepayments 

(Decrease} mcrease m trade and other payables 

(Decrease) mcrease m income Jn advance 

(Decrease Increase In employee l!ab1ht1es 
{Decrease) Increase in prov1sfons 

Net cash from operating activities 

$ 

33,938 
1,876,735 
5,331,931 

49,254 
268,454 
247,298 

7,807,610 

147,902 
147,902 

23,272 
23,272 

480,753 

44,467 
1,452 

526,672 

(69,920) 

117,988 
(3,000) 
(6,764) 

432,779 
14,147 

9,261 
5,371,483 

42,275 
9,154 

5,917,403 

$ 

87,538 
1,673,666 

150,186 
62,585 

226,179 
184,437 

2,384,591 

122,665 
122,665 

39,355 
39,355 

454,719 

41,270 
6,968 

502,957 

17,091 

115,903 

{13, 742) 

(368,772) 
(118,412) 

4,271 

4,203 
27,675 

(20,716) 

!352,499) 
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Note U - Commitmen-ts 

O~atlng lease commitments 
Commitments for mmimum lease payments m re lation to non-cancellable operatmg leases 

are payable as follows: 

Wtthm one year 

Later than one year but not later than ftve years 

2016 
$ 

339,816 
1,407,222 
1,747,038 

2015 
$ 

287,063 
165,623 
452,686 

(1) A new property lease was entered Into effect1ve from July 2016 and ls a rwn-cancellable lease expiring in June 2021, with 
rent pa'yable monthly 1n adVilnte An option elOsts to renew the lease at the end of the term for an addlt1onal terms of five 

years The lease allows for sublettmg 

(11) Various non-cancellable equipment rental agreements with rema1nmg terms of approximately one to three years from 

year-end, w tth rent payable etther monthly or quarterly m advance or arrears m equal instalments over the term of the 

agreements. At the end of the rental term an option ex1sts to either return the goods or renew the agreements 

Note 14 - Events otcurrlna after balance date 

There were no slgmf1cant events occurnng after balance date. 

Note 15 - Related party transactions 

Dl~ctors' remunerotlon 

In accordance wtth the company's Constitution, the Dtrectors hold that postt ton In an honC?rary capacity and thus recetve no 

remuneratton or retirement or superannuation benefits for their servlce.s 

Professional services received by Directors ond associates 
Certain Directors are employed by or associated wtth enttty's who are members of the company. These membership servtces 

are prov1ded to those entity's on an arms length basts and upon normal commercial terms 

Note 16- Financial instruments 

Generof 
Note 3 discusses t he types of nsks associated w ith the company's fmanaallnstruments as well as the pohctes adopted by the 

company to manage and momtor those nsks and some other qualitative information. The quant1tat1ve Information 

presented below complements those earher dtsclosures and sllould be read 1n conJunction with them 

Credit rls·k 
Exposure to credit nsk 
The carrytng amount of the company's financial assets represents the max1mum credit exposure. The company's maximum 

exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was;-

Cash and cash eqwvalents (refer note 6) 

Trade and other receivables (refer note 7) 

2016 

$ 
9,722,819 

977,433 
10,700,252 

201S 
$ 

4,082,064 
1,421,359 
5,503,423 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 

Note 16 - Financial Instruments (continued) 

Uquldlty risk 
The follow1ng are the contractual maturities of financial l1ablhties, mcludmg estimated 
mterest payments. The contractual amounts are expected future payments wh1ch have 
not been discounted 

Trade and other payables 

All trade and other payables are expected to be paid within 0 - 3 months and accorthng to 
the t rading terms. No amounts are past due or Impaired 

Interest rote risk 
At the reportmg date the mterest rate profile of the company's mterest beanng financial 
Instruments was -

Cash and cash eqwvalents 

A change of 1% 1n Interest rates at the reporting date wouldi have mcreased (decreased) 
equity and profit or loss by $97,.228 (2015: $40,821). This analysis assumes that all other 
variables remain constant. 

Falr~~t~lues 

Falf values compared to carrymg amounts 

The fair values of fmanc1al assets and nab1ltties, together w1th their carrying amo1,1r1ts 
shown In the statement of flnanc1al posit ion, are as follows 

Assets carried at amortised cost 
cash and cash equivalents 
Trade and other receivables 

Ltab1lit 1es carried at amortised cost 
Trade and other payables 

As at 30 June 2016 the fair value has been assessed to be the same amount as the c.arrying 
value This analysis was the same as at the 2015 balance date The basis for determ1nrng 
fa.lr value rs diSclosed in note 3. 

Folf value hierarchy 

All fmanc1almstruments are earned at amortised cost 

Note 17 -Section 272 Fair Work (Reatsterecl OraanlsatlonsJ Art 2009 

2016 
$ 

281,236 

9,722,819 

9,724,669 

977,433 
10,702,102 

7,807,610 

2015 
$ 

271,975 

4,082,914 

1,421,359 
5,504,273 

In accordance with the reqUirements of the Fa1r Work (Registered Orgamsat1ons) Act 2009 , the attent1on of members is 
drawn to the proviSions of subsections (1) to (3) of section 272, wh1ch reads as follows: 

Information to be provided tb members or the General Manager of Fa1r Work Commisslon. 
(1) A member of the company, or the General Manager of Falr Work CommlsSJon, m;y apply to t he company for specrf1ed 
prescnbed mformat1on In relation to the company to be made avatlable to the person making the application 

(il l The application must be In wntlng and must specify the period withm which, and the manner m which, the tnformat1on is 
to be made available. The penod must not be less than 14 days after the appllcatwn 1s g1ven to the company. 

(iii) The company must comply w1th an application made under subsection (1} 
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Note 18 ·Additional dlsclos.ures required by Fair Work Commission 

Revenue: 
Compulsory levies ra ised 

Donations/Grants received 

Employee expenSi!s: 

Holders of office 

There are no employee expenses rn relatron to holders of office. 

Employees other than office holders 

Wages and Salanes 

Superannuatron 

Leave and other entitlements 
Separatron and redundancies 
Other employee expenses 

Other expenses: 
Affiliation fees 
Compulsory levres 
Donations/Grants paid 
Employee fe£>s/allowances 
Conference/meeting attendance allowances 
Meeting/conference expenses 
legal cost~ 

Penaltres under Fasr Wotk (Registered Orgamsat1ons) Act 2009 

Employee provisions: 

Holders of office 
There are no employee provisions 1n relation to holders of office. 

Employees other than office holders 
Annual leave 
Long Service Leave 

Separatron and redundancres 
Other employee provisions 

Other payables: 

Payables rn respect of legal costs 

2016 
$ 

1,525,061 
189,816 
419,703 

496 
2,081 

268,454 

171,174 

2015 
$ 

1,442,120 
215,710 
355,715 

64,026 

14,490 

226,179 
162,020 



DIRECTORS' DECLARATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 

On S September 2016 the Board of 0Jrectx)rs of ICed & Community Services NSW & ACT passed W1 followtng 
resolution tn relltlon to the general purpose ftn.,c::ial report (GPFR) of the 111port1,. !Milt for the flnanoal year 
ended 30 Jl.lne 2016. 

The Board dednes In relation to th~ Gf'FR that In its opinion· 

(a) ttle ftl\lnctal.statements 1nd notes comply with the Australian Accountlna Standards; 
(b) th~ flnandal statements and notes comply with the reportlnt auldellnes of the General Manqer of Fa1r 

Work Commllslon·; 
(e) the financial statement and notes lllve a true and fair view of the flnanelal pl1"formanc:e, financial position 

and cash flows of the company for the finanaal yeer to which they rwllte~ 
(d) there are reasonable aroundt to believe that the company wnl be able to pay rts debts as end when they 

become due end pay~ble; 
(e) durtnc the flnand al year to whfch the GPFR relates and since the end ol that year. 

(I) meetmes of the Dtrectors were held In acconfmce wfth the rules of the orpnasatlon; and 
(U) the finandal efflirs of 1he comp;~ny haw been ININCed In a~ with tf1e rules of the 

orwantsatfon; and 
(til) the flnandal records of the company have been kept and tnllntalned In accordance With the 

AlJstrallon Ch01/tle.s and Not-for-profit$ Comntission ~gukltlotl 2013 and Fair Worlc (R~Iste~d 
Orgcmlsarlons) Act 2009; and 

(lv) there 1s only one 111port1ns unit ami there are no branches; and 
(Ill no lnfonnatlon or request he$ been made by • member of the company or General Manater dyfy 

under Se.ction 272 of the Fair Worlc ~~d Orgonfsatlons) Act 2009; and 
(vf) no orders for Inspection of fln.lllc:ial records have been made by the Fair Wori( Commission under 

5Cdlon 273 of the Fafr WOrk (R~ OrgfmJstJtJ«ts) N:t 2009. 
(f) there has been no ,..,awry of weps attMty. 

51&ned on behalf of the Board In ac.cvrdanaJ with a rtldution of Directors: 

Vlv~nne Allanson 
President 

S September 2016 

O~ld Maher 
Director 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

AS AT 30 JUNE 2016 
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Report on the Financial Report 
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We have audited the accompanying financial report of the Aged & Community Services NSVV & ACT wnlch comprises the 
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2016 and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive Income, 
statement of changes In equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant 
account ing policies and other explanatory notes and the Directors Declaration. 

Directors' Responsibility for the Rnanclal Report 
The Directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in 
accordance with Austral ian Accounting Standards and Interpretations and the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits 
Commission Act 2012 and Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 and for such internal control as the Directors 
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that Is free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is t o express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant et hical 
requirements relat ing to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the 
financia l report is free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures In the financial 
report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers Internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the company's internal control. 

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the flnandal report. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Independence 
In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Australian Charities and Not-for­
profits Commission Act 2012 and any applicable code of professuonal conduct in relation to the audit . 

Auditor's Opinion 
In our opinion the financial report of the Aged & Community Services NSW & ACT is In accordance with the Australian 
Charities and Nor1or-proflts Commission Act 2012 1ncluding: 

(I) giving a true and fair view of the company's financial position as at 30 June 2016 and of its performance for the year 
ended on that date; and 

(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations and the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits 
Commission Regulation 2013 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

AS AT 30 JUNE 2016 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
In addition, our audit report has also been prepared for the members of the company in accordance with section 257(5) 
and section 255 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. Accordingly we have performed additional work 
beyond that which Is performed in our capacity as auditors pursuant to the Australian Charities and Not1or-profits 
Commission Act 20l2. These additional procedures Included obtaining an understanding of the Internal control structure 
and associated record keeping and other requirements pursuant to the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 

The performance of our statutory audit bcluded a review of internal controls for the purpose of determining the 
appropriate audit procedures to enable an opinion to be expressed on the financlal report. This review is not a 
comprehensive review of all those systems or of t he system taken as a whole and is not designed to uncover all 

weaknesses in those systems. 

The audit opinion expressed in this report pursuant to the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 has been 
formed on the above basis. 

Auditor's Opfnlon 
Pursuant to the requirements of section 257(5) and section 255 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 we 
report that, In our opinion: 

a) the financia l report is presented fairly In accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (Including Australian 
Accounting Interpretations); and 

b) the company maintained satisfactory accounting records In relation to the year ended 30 June 2016 including records of 
the sources and nature of income (including income from members) and records of the nature & purposes of the 
expenditure of the <ompany; and 

c) we were provided with all the information and explanations as requested from the officers or employees of the 
company. 

Auditor's Dec/af'Cition 
Pursuant to the requirements of section 255 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, I declare that: 

a) I am an approved auditor; and 
b) I am a member of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand; and 
c) management's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the company's financial statements is 

appropriate. 

StewartBrown 
Chartered Accountants 

Stuart Hutcheon 
Partner 
Registered Company Auditor- 309885 

5 September 201E 
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svc-adlib5

From: Geoff Liggins 

Sent: Thursday, 30 March 2017 5:25 PM

To: ANDERSON, Eve

Subject: Re: annual return of information to be lodged with the FWC no later than 31 

March

Thanks very much Eve.
I managed to speak to Mira just now and am confident that she is on top of the matter.
I'm sure she will contact you tomorrow to confirm.
Thanks once again for your assistance
Kind Regards

Geoff Liggins
Manager Employee Relations

------ Original message------
From: ANDERSON, Eve 
Date: Thu, 30 Mar 2017 5:19 PM
To: Geoff Liggins;
Cc: 
Subject:annual return of information to be lodged with the FWC no later than 31 March

Dear Geoff

As discussed, please find attached a template ‘annual return of information’. This is also available on our website at: 
https://www.fwc.gov.au/registered-organisations/fact-sheets-templates-webinars

The Aged & Community Services NSW & ACT is an organisation registered under the Fair Work (Registered 
Organisations) Act 2009 and therefore is required to lodge information no later than 31 March. I have also attached 
a fact sheet which explains the requirements in more detail.

The information can be lodged via email at orgs@fwc.gov.au

Regards

EVE ANDERSON
Principal Adviser
Regulatory Compliance Branch 

The Fair Work Commission
Tel: (03) 8656 4683
Fax: (03) 9655 0410
eve.anderson@fwc.gov.au

11 Exhibition Street, Melbourne Victoria 3000
GPO Box 1994, Melbourne Victoria 3001

www.fwc.gov.au

Please be aware my telephone number has changed. My new phone number is 03 8656 4683 Please update your 
records accordingly
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Please consider the impact to the environment and your responsibility before printing this email. This email 
and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to 
whom they are addressed. If you have received this email in error please notify the sender. 
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svc-adlib5

From: ANDERSON, Eve

Sent: Thursday, 30 March 2017 5:11 PM

To: ' '

Subject: annual return of information to be lodged with the FWC no later than 31 March

Attachments: ORG-Annual-Return-template-NO-branches.docx; RO_FS_6_RecordsLodged.pdf

Dear Geoff

As discussed, please find attached a template ‘annual return of information’. This is also available on our website at: 
https://www.fwc.gov.au/registered-organisations/fact-sheets-templates-webinars

The Aged & Community Services NSW & ACT is an organisation registered under the Fair Work (Registered 
Organisations) Act 2009 and therefore is required to lodge information no later than 31 March. I have also attached 
a fact sheet which explains the requirements in more detail.

The information can be lodged via email at orgs@fwc.gov.au

Regards

EVE ANDERSON
Principal Adviser
Regulatory Compliance Branch 

The Fair Work Commission
Tel: (03) 8656 4683
Fax: (03) 9655 0410
eve.anderson@fwc.gov.au

11 Exhibition Street, Melbourne Victoria 3000
GPO Box 1994, Melbourne Victoria 3001

www.fwc.gov.au

Please be aware my telephone number has changed. My new phone number is 03 8656 4683 Please update your 
records accordingly
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ANNUAL RETURN OF INFORMATION (organisation with no branches) in accordance with 
Regulation 147 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Regulations 2009 and Sections 230 
and 233 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009

I, [NAME], being the [OFFICER] of the [ORGANISATION NAME], declare the following: 

1. I am authorised to make this declaration.

2. The register of members has, during the immediately preceding calendar year, been kept and 

maintained as required by s.230(1)(a) and s.230(2) of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) 

Act 2009 (the Act).

3. The following is a correct statement of the information contained in the records required to be 

kept by the organisation in accordance with s.230(1)(b), (c), and (d) of the Act:

 The address of the organisation is [STREET ADDRESS].1

 The organisation has no branches and no branches have ceased or commenced in 

the previous 12 months.2

 On 31 December in the previous year the number of members was [NUMBER OF 

MEMBERS].3

 A list of offices and the names, postal addresses and occupations of persons 

holding those offices as at the date of this declaration is attached at Annexure A and 

forms part of this declaration. 

 Under the rules of the organisation, the following elections must be held between 1 

January and 31 December of THIS YEAR:4

[For example: President (1),

Committee of Management Members (7), OR

No elections are required.]

                                               
1

s.230(1)(d); reg.147(d)
2

s.230(1)(d); reg.147(a), (b), (c) & (d)
3

s.230(1)(d); reg.147(f)
4

s.230(1)(d); reg.147(e)
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 The organisation: [Delete the dot point that does not apply]

 Has not entered into an agreement under s.151(1) of the Act with a state 

union. 

 Has entered into an agreement under s.151(1) of the Act with a state union

and the number of members of the state union who were not eligible to be 

members of the organisation on 31 December in the previous year is 

[NUMBER OF MEMBERS].5

Signed: [SECRETARY OR OTHER AUTHORISED OFFICER]

Dated: [DATE]

[PLEASE NOTE: This declaration must be lodged with the Fair Work Commission by 31 March. It 

can be submitted to orgs@fwc.gov.au. If at any time in the year this information changes a 

Notification of Changes must be lodged with the Commission within 35 days of the change6.]

                                               
5

s.230(1)(d); reg.147(g)
6

s.233(2); reg. 151
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ANNEXURE A

 Offices and Office Holders in the Organisation [insert as many pages as required]:

Name of Office
(include any offices 
that are vacant)

Name of Office Holder Postal Address of Office Holder Occupation of Office 
Holder

Secretary Full Name c/- the Registered Organisation, postal address of 
Registered Organisation

Paid  official

President Full Name As above mechanic
Treasurer Vacant vacant vacant
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Annual returns—Records to be lodged annually by 
registered organisations  

The Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (RO Act) requires organisations (both 
employer and employee) to lodge specified records on an annual basis and any changes to 
those records within 35 days of the change. This fact sheet provides an overview of these 
obligations. 

Note 1: registered organisations are referred to in this sheet simply as organisations. 

Note 2: references in this fact sheet to regulations are to the Fair Work (Registered 
Organisations) Regulations 2009. 

Note 3: The information in this fact sheet does not cover all matters relating to records to be 
lodged by of organisations arising under the Fair Work legislation. See Fact sheet: Elections in 
organisations and their branches for lodgment requirements regarding elections and Fact sheet: 
Financial reporting process and timelines for lodgment requirements regarding Financial 
Reports. 

Records to be lodged annually (annual return) 
An organisation must lodge with the Fair Work Commission (the Commission) by 31 March 
each year:  

1. A declaration regarding the register of members (section 233(1)(a) and regulations 149 
& 150) 

 the declaration needs to certify that the register of members has, during the 
immediately preceding calendar year, been kept and maintained as required by 
sections 230(1)(a) and 230(2) 

 the declaration must be signed and lodged by the secretary, or other officer who is 
required by the organisation or the rules of the organisation to keep the register of 
members (regulation 150); and 

2. Other records to be lodged (section 233(1)(b) and regulation 147) 

 a copy of the records required to be kept under sections 230(1)(b), (c) and (d) (see 
table below for details) 

 with a declaration certifying that the records lodged are a correct statement of the 
information contained in those records 

 the declaration must be signed by the secretary, or other officer who is required by the 
organisation or the rules of the organisation to keep these records. 



Published 23 May 2013 www.fwc.gov.au 2/3 

Records to be lodged within 35 days of changes 
An organisation must lodge with the Commission within 35 days of any change (section 233(2) 
and regulation 151): 

 any change made to the records required to be kept under sections 230(1)(b), (c) and (d) 
(see table below for details) 

 this notification must be certified by declaration that the changes notified are a correct 
statement of the changes 

 the declaration must be signed by the secretary, or other officer who is required by the 
organisation or the rules of the organisation to keep these records (regulation 150). 

 Table—records to be lodged annually and within 35 days of any change 

Record Key Contents 

Maintenance of register of 
members 
[section 233(1)(a)] 

A declaration by the secretary or other prescribed officer certifying that the 
register of members has, during the immediately preceding calendar year, 
been kept and maintained as required by sections 230(1)(a) and (2) 

List of offices 
[section 233(1)(b)] 

A list of the offices in the organisation and each branch (a record of which is 
required to be kept in accordance with section 230(1)(b)) (note the definition 
of “office” and “officer” in sections 6 & 9) 

List of office holders 
[section 233(1)(b)] 

A list of the names, postal addresses and occupations of the persons holding 
the offices (a record of which is required to be kept in accordance with 
section 230(1)(c)) (note the definition of “office” and “officer” in sections 6 & 
9) 

List of branches 
[section 233(1)(b)] 

A record of the name of each branch of the organisation (a record of which is 
required to be kept in accordance with section 230(1)(d) and regulation 147) 

New branches 
[section 233(1)(b)] 

A record of the name of each branch that commenced operation in the 
previous 12 months (a record of which is required to be kept in accordance 
with section 230(1)(d) and regulation 147) 

Old branches 
[section 233(1)(b)] 

A record of the name of each branch that ceased operation in the previous 
12 months (a record of which is required to be kept in accordance with 
section 230(1)(d) and regulation 147) 

Addresses of organisation 
and branches 
[section 233(1)(b)] 

A record of the address of the office of the organisation and the address of 
the office of each branch (a record of which is required to be kept in 
accordance with section 230(1)(d) and regulation 147) 

Elections in organisation and 
branches 
[section 233(1)(b)] 

A record of each election that must, under the rules of the organisation, be 
held during each calendar year commencing 1 January for any offices in the 
organisation and branches of the organisation (i.e. for the calendar year in 
which the return is lodged) (a record of which is required to be kept in 
accordance with section 230(1)(d) and regulation 147). 

Note: this provision does not relieve an organisation or branch from the 
separate requirement to lodge prescribed information prior to each election, 
as required by section 189 of the RO Act (see Fact sheet: Elections in 
organisations) 

Statement concerning 
number of members 
[section 233(1)(b)] 

A record of the number of members on 31 December in the previous year, 
and, if the organisation has entered into an agreement relating to members 
of State unions under s151(1) of the RO Act - a record of the number of 
members of the organisation who were (on 31 December in the previous 
year) ineligible State members in relation to the organisation within the 
meaning of section 150 of the RO Act (a record of which is required to be 
kept in accordance with section 230(1)(d) and regulation 147) 
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© Commonwealth of Australia 2013 

This fact sheet is not intended to be comprehensive. The Fair Work Commission does not provide legal advice. Users must rely upon the 

relevant legislation, which is set out in the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, the Fair Work Act 2009, the Fair Work 

(Transitional Provisions and Consequential Amendments) Act 2009 and the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Regulations 2009. 
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From: ANDERSON, Eve

Sent: Thursday, 30 March 2017 12:33 PM

To: ' '

Subject: Annula return of information

Dear Mr Bosworth

I’m emailing you to advise that the Fair Work Commission has not yet received the Aged and Community Services’s 
annual return of information, required by section 233 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. Failure 
to lodge the information exposes the Association to the imposition of a civil penalty.

The annual return of information is required to be lodged by 31 March 2017. Please ensure that it is emailed to 
orgs@fwc.gov.au

Please advise as to the progress of the matter and anticipated time and date of lodgement.

Regards
EVE ANDERSON
Principal Adviser
Regulatory Compliance Branch 

The Fair Work Commission
Tel: (03) 8656 4683
Fax: (03) 9655 0410
eve.anderson@fwc.gov.au

11 Exhibition Street, Melbourne Victoria 3000
GPO Box 1994, Melbourne Victoria 3001

www.fwc.gov.au

Please be aware my telephone number has changed. My new phone number is 03 8656 4683 Please update your 
records accordingly



11 Exhibition Street
Me bourne VIC 3000

GPO Box 1994
Melbourne VIC 3001   

Telephone: (03) 8661 7777

Email : orgs@fwc.gov.au

Internet : www.fwc.gov.au

1 March 2017

Chief Executive Officer

Aged & Community Services NSW & ACT

mail@acs.asn.au

Dear Chief Executive Officer,

Aged & Community Services NSW & ACT
Annual Return of Information for 2017 [AR2017/86]

I refer to our letter of January 2017 reminding you of the obligation to lodge an Annual Return of 
Information for 2017 by 31 March 2017.  While the organisation has until the end of the month in 
which to lodge the information, we provide the following as a second and final reminder. Please 
ignore this letter if you have lodged the Annual Return in the last few days.

A signed and dated declaration certifying matters prescribed in the Fair Work (Registered 
Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act) must be lodged with the Fair Work Commission (the 
Commission) or the Registered Organisation Commission (the ROC) by the 31 March 2017. 

It is not yet known when the ROC will be established.  We strongly encourage you to lodge the 
Annual Return of Information with the Fair Work Commission as soon as possible to avoid any 
potential administrative delays which may be caused by new email and postal addresses and 
contact phone numbers with the newly created ROC.  

Where to lodge your Annual Return of information

Before the ROC is established From establishment of the ROC 

Where to lodge Lodge your Annual Return of 
information with the Fair Work 
Commission

Lodge your Annual Return of 
information with the ROC

How to lodge The easiest way to lodge your Annual 
Return of information is via email: 
orgs@fwc.gov.au

Lodgement methods are not yet 
known

Recommendation Lodge with the Fair Work Commission 
as soon as possible to avoid potential 
delays

What must be lodged?

The matters to be included in the declaration are set out in the attached checklist.

The declaration must be signed by the Secretary, or where applicable, such other elected official 
who is required under the rules or by resolution of the organisation, to keep the relevant records 
(other prescribed officer). A declaration signed by a non-elected person does not meet this 
requirement. Further, you are reminded that the Secretary or other prescribed officer must also 
notify the Commission within 35 days of any changes to such records that may occur throughout 
the year. 

If you require further information about an Annual Return you can refer to the 'Annual Information 
Requirements' page on our website and, in particular, our Webinar slides.



Once an Annual Return has been lodged, a copy will be posted on our website at List of 
Registered Organisations. Therefore, to protect the privacy of the relevant office holders listed in 
the declarations, it is recommended that officers list their official mailing address rather than 
personal home address.

We encourage you to lodge all returns electronically (e.g. as a pdf file) at orgs@fwc.gov.au. Please 
ensure that emailed documents include signatures where required.

Please note: failure to comply with these obligations is subject to a civil penalty provision 
(up to $54,000 for a body corporate and $10,800 for an individual per contravention), under s.305 
of the RO Act. Finally, in maintaining the register of members, your attention is drawn to the 
circumstances where membership ceases to exist (s.230(2)(b) and s.171A of the RO Act).

Please do not hesitate to contact the Commission by phone on (03) 8661 7777 or by e-mail at 
orgs@fwc.gov.au if you wish to discuss the requirements outlined in this correspondence.

Yours sincerely,

Christine Hibberd
Adviser  
Regulatory Compliance Branch



Obligation to lodge Annual Return of Information by 31 March
For full details see ss.230-233 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act), and rr.147-151 
of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Regulations 2009 (the RO Regulations).

A copy of each of the following records must be lodged with the Fair Work Commission (the Commission) between 
1 January and 31 March each year. They must be certified by a declaration stating that it is a correct statement of 
the information contained in that record, signed by the Secretary or such other elected official who is required 
under the rules, or by resolution of the organisation, to keep the relevant records (other prescribed officer see 
r.150 of the RO Regulations).

Failure to comply with these obligations is subject to a civil penalty provision – see s.305 of the RO Act.

Requirement Details of requirement

Maintenance of 

Register of Members

A declaration by the Secretary or other prescribed officer certifying that the register 

of members has, during the immediately preceding calendar year, been kept and 

maintained as required by ss.230(1)(a) and (2)

[s.233(1)(a)]

Note: In maintaining the register of members, your attention is drawn to s.171A of 

the RO Act that outlines the circumstances where membership ceases to exist.

List of Offices A list of the offices in the organisation and each branch (note the definition of office

and officer in ss.6 and 9)

[s.230(1)(b)]

List of Office holders A list of the names, postal addresses and occupations of the persons holding the 

offices (note the definition of office and officer in ss.6 and 9)

[s.230(1)(c)]

List of Branches A record of the name of each branch of the organisation

[s.230(1)(d) and r.147(a)]

New Branches A record of the name of each branch that commenced operation in the previous 

12 months

[s.230(1)(d) and r.147(b)]

Old Branches A record of the name of each branch that ceased operation in the previous 

12 months

[s.230(1)(d) and r.147(c)]

Addresses of 

Organisation and 

Branches

A record of the address of the office of the organisation and the address of the office 

of each branch

[s.230(1)(d) and r.147(d)]

Elections in 

Organisation and 

Branches

A record of each election that must, under the rules of the organisation, be held 

during the year commencing 1 January of the year in which the return is lodged, for 

any offices in the organisation and branches of the organisation .

[s.230(1)(d) and r.147(e)]

Note: this provision does not relieve an organisation or branch from the separate 

requirement to lodge prescribed information prior to each election, as required by 

s.189 of the RO Act

Statement concerning 

number of members

A record of the number of members on 31 December in the previous year; and

If the organisation has entered into an agreement relating to members of State 

unions under s.151(1) of the RO Act,- a record of the number of members of the 

organisation who were (on 31 December in the previous year) ineligible State 

members in relation to the organisation within the meaning of s.150 of the RO Act.

[s.230(1)(d) and rr.147(f) and (g)]

Obligation to notify of changes within 35 days
If there are any changes during the year to the offices, officeholders, branches (where relevant) or the address of 
the organisation and/or its branches an organisation must, within 35 days of the change, lodge with the 
Commission, a notification of such changes certified by declaration signed by the secretary or other prescribed 
officer of the organisation to be a correct statement of the changes made [RO Act s.233(2) and RO Regulations 
r.151 refer].



11 Exhibition Street
Melbourne VIC 3000

GPO Box 1994
Melbourne VIC 3001   

Telephone: (03) 8661 7777
Email : orgs@fwc.gov.au

Internet : www.fwc.gov.au

20 January 2017

Chief Executive Officer
Aged & Community Services NSW & ACT

By email: mail@acs.asn.au

Dear Chief Executive Officer,

Aged & Community Services NSW & ACT
Annual Return of Information for 2017 [AR2017/86]

This is a courtesy letter to remind you of the obligation to lodge an Annual Return of Information for 
2017 in respect of the Aged & Community Services NSW & ACT by 31 March 2017. However, for the 
reasons explained below, we strongly recommend that organisations lodge the Annual Return of 
information as soon as possible.

The new Registered Organisations Commission

The Registered Organisations Commission (the ROC) will be created in 2017.  

Annual Returns of Information must be lodged with the Fair Work Commission until the ROC is 
established. Once the ROC is established, Annual Returns of information must be lodged with the 
ROC.  

It is not yet known when the ROC will be established.  We strongly encourage you to lodge the Annual 
Return of Information with the Fair Work Commission as soon as possible to avoid any potential 
administrative delays which may be caused by new email and postal addresses and contact phone 
numbers with the newly created ROC.  

The Fair Work Commission will be providing information on the transition to the ROC through its 
subscription service and its website.  For details about the subscription service, go to Subscriptions and 
subscribe to the Registered organisations information service. 

Where to lodge your Annual Return of information

Before the ROC is established From establishment of the ROC 

Where to lodge Lodge your Annual Return of 
information with the Fair Work 
Commission

Lodge your Annual Return of 
information with the ROC

How to lodge The easiest way to lodge your Annual 
Return of information is via email: 
orgs@fwc.gov.au

Lodgement methods are not yet 
known

Recommendation Lodge with the Fair Work Commission 
as soon as possible to avoid potential 
delays

What must be lodged?

A signed and dated declaration certifying matters prescribed in the Fair Work (Registered 
Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act) must be lodged with the Fair Work Commission (the 
Commission). The matters to be included in the declaration are set out in the attached checklist.



In maintaining the register of members, your attention is drawn to the circumstances where 
membership ceases to exist (s.230(2)(b) and s.171A of the RO Act).

Once an Annual Return has been lodged, a copy will be posted on our website at List of Registered 
Organisations. Therefore, to protect the privacy of the relevant office holders listed in the declarations, it 
is recommended that officers list their official mailing address rather than personal home address.

Who must sign the declaration?

The declaration must be signed by the Secretary, or where applicable, such other elected official who is 
required under the rules or by resolution of the organisation, to keep the relevant records (other 
prescribed officer). A declaration signed by a non-elected person does not meet this requirement. 

Who lodges the Annual Return of information?

Section 233 places the onus of lodgement on the organisation and not on each individual branch. It is 
therefore the national body that is obliged to collate and lodge all of the required information. Annual 
Return templates are available on the Commission website at Registered Organisations fact sheets, 
one for an organisation with branches and one for an organisation without branches.

What happens if the information changes?

The Secretary, or other prescribed officer, must notify the Fair Work Commission (or the ROC when it is 
established) within 35 days of any changes to such records that may occur throughout the year. 

Failure to comply with these obligations is subject to a civil penalty provision (up to $54,000 for a 
body corporate and $10,800 for an individual per contravention), under s.305 of the RO Act. 

Please do not hesitate to contact the Commission by phone on (03) 8661 7777 or by e-mail at 
orgs@fwc.gov.au if you wish to discuss the requirements outlined in this correspondence.

Yours sincerely,

Marianne Kay
Adviser 
Regulatory Compliance Branch



Obligation to lodge Annual Return of Information by 31 March

For full details see ss.230-233 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act), and rr.147-151 
of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Regulations 2009 (the RO Regulations).

A copy of each of the following records must be lodged with the Fair Work Commission (the Commission) between 
1 January and 31 March each year. They must be certified by a declaration stating that it is a correct statement of 
the information contained in that record, signed by the Secretary or such other elected official who is required 
under the rules, or by resolution of the organisation, to keep the relevant records (other prescribed officer see 
r.150 of the RO Regulations).

Failure to comply with these obligations is subject to a civil penalty provision – see s.305 of the RO Act.

Requirement Details of requirement

Maintenance of 
Register of Members

A declaration by the Secretary or other prescribed officer certifying that the register 
of members has, during the immediately preceding calendar year, been kept and 
maintained as required by ss.230(1)(a) and (2)
[s.233(1)(a)]
Note: In maintaining the register of members, your attention is drawn to s.171A of 
the RO Act that outlines the circumstances where membership ceases to exist.

List of Offices A list of the offices in the organisation and each branch (note the definition of office
and officer in ss.6 and 9)
[s.230(1)(b)]

List of Office holders A list of the names, postal addresses and occupations of the persons holding the 
offices (note the definition of office and officer in ss.6 and 9)
[s.230(1)(c)]

List of Branches A record of the name of each branch of the organisation
[s.230(1)(d) and r.147(a)]

New Branches A record of the name of each branch that commenced operation in the previous 
12 months
[s.230(1)(d) and r.147(b)]

Old Branches A record of the name of each branch that ceased operation in the previous 
12 months
[s.230(1)(d) and r.147(c)]

Addresses of 
Organisation and 
Branches

A record of the address of the office of the organisation and the address of the office 
of each branch
[s.230(1)(d) and r.147(d)]

Elections in 
Organisation and 
Branches

A record of each election that must, under the rules of the organisation, be held 
during the year commencing 1 January of the year in which the return is lodged, for 
any offices in the organisation and branches of the organisation .
[s.230(1)(d) and r.147(e)]
Note: this provision does not relieve an organisation or branch from the separate 
requirement to lodge prescribed information prior to each election, as required by 
s.189 of the RO Act

Statement concerning 
number of members

A record of the number of members on 31 December in the previous year; and
If the organisation has entered into an agreement relating to members of State 
unions under s.151(1) of the RO Act,- a record of the number of members of the 
organisation who were (on 31 December in the previous year) ineligible State 
members in relation to the organisation within the meaning of s.150 of the RO Act.
[s.230(1)(d) and rr.147(f) and (g)]

Obligation to notify of changes within 35 days
If there are any changes during the year to the offices, officeholders, branches (where relevant) or the address of 
the organisation and/or its branches an organisation must, within 35 days of the change, lodge with the 
Commission, a notification of such changes certified by declaration signed by the secretary or other prescribed 
officer of the organisation to be a correct statement of the changes made [RO Act s.233(2) and RO Regulations 
r.151 refer].




